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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Ziyuanyuan
Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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(for the purpose of the GEM Listing Rules)
Mr. Zhang Junshen
Mr. Wong Kwok San

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
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KONG
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
R

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Ziyuanyuan
Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is principally
engaged in provision of medical equipment finance leasing services,
maternal and child postpartum care industry services and trading of
medical equipments and consumables business in the PRC.

OUTLOOK

2021 was a year of making significant breakthroughs of business
of the Group, in which the Group also has gained the support
and recognition from all walks of life. Since its establishment,
the Group is committed to the enterprise spirit of “excellence,
innovation, integrity and win-win” and keeps on a steady track
of development, based on the finance leasing services whose
operating business has spread all over the country. Under the
professional team operation and modernization management
philosophy, the Group continuously upgrades its industrial structure
and integrates resources in order to realize the operating goals of
the win-win of economic and social benefit.

The Group is still reasonably optimistic to sustain the core business
given all the economic uncertainties with the outbreak of Covid-19.
The Group will continue to seek for the best possible opportunities
to grow the Group’s business by leveraging current client base.
After the pandemic, the healthcare industry will be a new economic
breakthrough with significant value-added potentials. The Group
initiated pre-emptive deployment of finance leasing service and
medical equipment fields that focus on oral cavity and maternity
and child industry. Meanwhile, the Group developed trading of
medical equipments and consumables business, which cooperates
with the maternal and child postpartum care industry, in order to
capture pioneer opportunities and support the industrial upgrade
of the healthcare industry, diversifying the income of the Group.
The Group's revenue also doubled compared to 2020, achieving a
breakthrough of over RMB100 million in revenue for the first time.
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In response to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the
increase in the past due ratio of customers, the Group's financial
leasing services began to adjust the target industry from the
printing and logistics industries in the past to the medical
equipment industry in 2020, with the effort of focusing on risk
management, lowering the internal rate of return to improve
asset quality and reducing risks as possible so as to protect
shareholders' interests. During the year, China Development Bank
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (1606.HK) agreed to grant a revolving
sale and leaseback facility to the Group up to RMB200 million
for the Group’s operation of finance lease business, which will
jointly promote the optimized development of dental medical
industry services, provide customized smart medical solutions and
services for customers in the dental industry, and empower the
development and construction of dental medical industry.

The trading of medical equipments and consumables business
focuses on boosting the development of the medical equipment
industry. The Group integrates supply chain resources through
Shenzhen Ruiheng Medical Supply Chain Co., Ltd., opens up
the upstream and downstream of the supply chain, and provides
intelligent supply chain services of centralized procurement,
Internet plus medical and trade installments, so as to provide
one-stop solutions for customers all over the country. During the
year, China Construction Bank Corporation (0939.HK) provided
the Group with a total strategic credit of RMB500 million to
support the trading business of medical devices, equipment and
consumables. Through the cooperation with the Group's platform
system, it realized batch, standardized and modular business
processes, through functions such as instant approval and online
signing, and effectively provided convenient, efficient and precise
financial assistance.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
R

In May 2021, China announced the implementation of the three-
child policy, so as to promote the link between the fertility policy
and related economic and social policies, and to improve the
population impact assessment mechanism for major economic
and social policies. The implementation of the three-child policy
is expected to further stimulate the fertility rate. According to
public research reports on market demand and investment plans
for the maternal and child postpartum care industry, the market
size of China’s maternal and child postpartum care centres
has been increasing since 2010 and is expected to reach to
approximately RMB32 billion in 2025, indicating a positive outlook
for the industry, so that the Group is expected to benefit from
the optimistic outlook of the maternal and child postpartum care
centre. There is a rigid demand for maternal and child health-
related services, and the overall market will continue to grow
rapidly. Through Shenzhen Meijiaer Health Management Co., Ltd.,
the Group focuses on the development of maternal and child
postpartum care industry services in South China and Central
China. Through the acquisition and opening of maternal and child
postpartum care centers, the Group currently owns three brands
of maternal and child postpartum care centre, namely "Dunnan
True Love", "Merry" and "NEW BABY". The number of directly-
operated stores has increased to 6, and there are many "Dunnan
True Love" franchise stores located in different regions of the
country.

In the new year, the global economic situation remains grim. We
will continue to increase investment in various businesses and
continue to strive to find opportunities in the face of challenges,
so as to return shareholders and the public, and realize corporate
value as well as social value.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere appreciation
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of the support and loyalty of the Shareholders, the Board is pleased
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per
share of the Company for the financial year 2021.

Zhang Junshen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw RO

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2021,
engaged in provision of medical equipment finance leasing services,

the Group is principally

maternal and child postpartum care industry services and trading of
medical equipments and consumables business in the PRC.

Finance leasing services
For the year ended 31 December 2021,
focusing on provision of finance leasing services to SMEs

the Group has been

customers in the medical equipment industry in various provinces,
municipalities, and autonomous regions in the PRC, where the
Group has established connections with industry players and gained
operational expertise. The finance lease offered by the Group
comprises direct finance leasing and sale-leaseback. The Group
provided services to approximately 3,100 SMEs customers across
30 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in the PRC as
at 31 December 2021. The Group derived a revenue of RMB51.2
million from the finance leasing services year ended 31 December
2021.

Maternal and child postpartum care industry services
Postpartum confinement (22 8)is a traditional Chinese custom,
which allows women to rest fully after giving birth, and to recover
through diet. It is said that it is the best time for women to improve
their physical well-being. Hence, centres for the provision of
postpartum care services (B FH.0) had emerged.

On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties to purchase the entire
equity interest in Guangzhou Sheng Cheng Dunnan Enterprise
Management Co., Limited (“Dunnan”), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC, with the consideration of RMB31 million.
Dunnan and its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of
postpartum care services in the PRC. The equity was transferred in
February 2021.

On 4 December 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties to purchase 54% of
equity share of Wuhan Jiaenbei Health Management Co. Ltd.
(“Jiaenbei”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
with consideration of RMB3.24 million. Jiaenbei is engaged in
provision of postpartum care service in the PRC. The equity was
transferred in January 2021.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has 6 postpartum care centres
in the PRC, which provide postpartum care services, consisting
of four major areas of (i) health care for postpartum mothers
and newborn babies; (ii) dietary and nutrition for postpartum
mothers; (iii) recovery and beauty for postpartum mothers; and
(iv) intellectual development for newborn babies. The Group
derived a revenue of RMB51.4 million from the maternal and child
postpartum care industry services for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Trading of medical equipments and consumables business
During the year, the Group having started the operation of trading
of medical equipments and consumables. The Group derived a
revenue of RMB16.8 million from trading of medical equipments
and consumables business for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue consists of (i) finance leasing income and interest income
from loan receivables in finance leasing services; (ii) postpartum
care services income; and (iii) income from trading of medical
equipments and consumables. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group’s revenue increased by approximately RMB60.9
million or approximately 104.1% to approximately RMB119.4
million (2020: RMB58.5 million). The increase in revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly attributable to the (i)
postpartum care services income increased from approximately
RMB2.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB51.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021; and (ii) new income from trading of medical equipments
and consumables of RMB16.8 million, which offsetting the finance
leasing income decreased from approximately RMB56.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB51.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales represents the cost of medical equipments and
consumables sold during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw RO

Staff cost

Staff costs include primarily Directors’ remuneration, employee
salaries, allowances and other staff benefits as well as employee
retirement benefits scheme contributions. Staff costs increased
from RMB14.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB34.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in
head count and staff salaries for existing staff; (ii) the staff costs
incurred by postpartum care services business, increased from
approximately RMBO0.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB15.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021;
deduction for the Group's contribution of social insurance funds

and (iii) the PRC government had granted a

for the year ended 31 December 2020 and there was no such
deduction for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Impairment losses under expected credit loss (“ECL") model,
net of reversal

The Group is not required to provide general provisions as
commercial banks and other financial institutions which the
China Banking Regulatory Commission regulates. The provisioning
policies are based on the applicable accounting standards. The
management assesses the measurement of ECL in relation to
finance lease receivables and loan receivables. In determining the
impairment of finance lease receivables and loan receivables, the
management considers shared credit risk characteristics including
industry types, historical past due information and lessees’
creditworthiness for grouping, and assesses credit losses based on
internal credit rating and on a forward looking basis with the use
of appropriate models and assumptions relate to the economic
inputs and the future macroeconomic conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, an additional impairment
loss of approximately RMB4.8 million (2020: RMB3.5 million)
was recognised due to the impact of Covid-19, which caused the
increase in the customers' past due ratio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses include primarily travelling expenses,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of
right-of-use assets, short-term leases payments and the operating
expenses incurred by maternal and child postpartum care business.

Other operating expenses increased from approximately RMB21.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB54.4 million for the the year ended 31 December 2021.
Thereinto, the other operating expenses for the postpartum care
business increased from approximately RMB1.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB32.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, and the related increase was
mainly induced by the newly-setup centres for the provision of
postpartum care services at the end of 2020 and the beginning
of 2021.
business for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly included:

The other operating expenses for the postpartum care

(i) the miscellaneous expenses of postpartum care business
of approximately RMB13.1 million (2020: RMBO0.8 million); (ii)
depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately RMB8.6 million
(2020: Nil); (iii) short-term leases payments of approximately
RMB4.5 million (2020: RMBO0.7 million); (iv) office expenses, water,
electricity and property management fees of approximately RMB2.9
million (2020: RMBO.1 million);
expenses of approximately RMB1.8 million (2020: RMBO.1 million).

and (vi) sales and marketing
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The other operating expenses for finance lease business increased
from approximately RMB19.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB21.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly attributed to
(i) the increase in depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
resulting from hiring a new head office in Shenzhen, the PRC in
the second half year of 2020 in order to develop the new business
and accommodate the increase in number of staff, which increased
from approximately RMB1.9 million for the the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB4.0 million for the the year
ended 31 December 2021;
system at the end of 2020, the amortisation of intangible assets

and (ii) the acceptance of business

was approximately RMB1.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: RMBO.1 million).

Finance costs
Finance costs consist of (i) imputed interest expense on interest—
free deposits from finance lease customers; (ii) interest on bank
borrowing; and (iii) interests on lease liabilities. Finance costs
decreased from approximately RMB8.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB8.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

due to imputed interest expense on interest-free deposits from

The decrease was mainly

finance lease customers decreased from approximately RMB2.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMBO.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 as a result
in the reduction in the amount of deposits from finance lease
customers, which offsetting (i) the interest on bank borrowing
increased from approximately RMB4.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB6.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021; and (ii) the interests on lease liabilities
increased from approximately RMBO0.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Taxation

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group qualified as small low-
profit enterprises with annual taxable income not more than
RMB1.0 million, and the portion that exceeds RMB1.0 million
but does not exceed RMB3.0 million (inclusive) are entitled to
enterprise income tax calculated at 12.5% and 50% of its taxable
income at a tax rate of 20%, respectively. A PRC subsidiary of
the Group recognised as high technology enterprise is entitled to
a preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15%. The enterprise
income tax rate applicable to the other PRC subsidiaries of the
Group is 25%.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's
profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company were approximately RMB5.5 million and RMB13.0
million, respectively. The decrease of profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the Company in the current year
was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in staff costs and other
operating costs; and (ii) the increase in impairment losses under
ECL model, net of reversal which offsetting the increase in revenue
and other gains and losses as compared to the corresponding
period in 2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash were
approximately RMB33.5 million (2020: RMB84.8 million). The
working capital (current assets less current liabilities) and total
equity of the Group were approximately RMB262.3 million (2020:
RMB179.9 million) and approximately RMB304.3 million (2020:
RMB303.3 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were amounted to approximately RMB191.2 million (2020:
RMB99.7 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio was approximately
38.6% (2020: 24.7%), which is calculated as bank and other
borrowings divided by total equity plus bank and other borrowings.
Such increase was mainly due to an increase in bank and other
borrowings for business expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Shares were successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 9 July 2018. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Group since then. The share capital of the Group
only comprises ordinary Shares.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$40,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
400,000,000.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s income and expenditure during the year ended
31 December 2021 were principally denominated in RMB, and
most of the assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 were
denominated in RMB. The Group did not experience any material
impact or difficulties in liquidity on its operations resulting from
the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no hedging transaction or
forward contract arrangement was made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no capital commitments
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries (2020: RMB27.0
million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's finance lease receivables and
loan receivables with an aggregate carrying values of approximately
RMB93.8 million (2020: RMB25.1 million) were pledged to a bank
and a finance lease company in the PRC to secure bank and other
borrowings of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the entire equity interests of a subsidiary
of the Group were pledged to a bank in the PRC to secure a bank
borrowing of the Group (2020: Nil).

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BREE
BHRZE—NFtAILBEEHIZIMGEM
I Eme Bt REBNEREB L EE
o AERMIKRAECFZTEREMN

RIE_—F+_B=+—H>'xATHNE
1T A< /440,000,000 75 ME B 21T
388 /A400,000,00005 3@ 55 o

I BE & B
AEEBRE_S-—F+-A=+—-AL
FEMNPARST HEBUARKHE B

TEC—F+B=+—HBKREBNEEK
BRERUARBSHE - AEBTERNEXRLH
MEIHENEACEIANEERFERRY
MR BAEERBE_Z2_—F+_8
S +t—HLEFETEFHERZZHEH
ERVESzX

BARKIE
WZZE—_—E+"A=+—8" m%gﬁﬁﬁ
BEWENBARNEARAKE (ZCEZ
AR27.0587T) °

FEBEER

B —F+ZA=+—B FRENW
5 R R IR R B I S SR E A R B
MARKISHBT (CT-BE I ARK
251 EET)  BERF-RPEEARTR
—RAEAEATURNEEEENRTR
Hitn R o

RIB-_—F+"RB=+—H &&E—
KNBRABANEHBREER T —RPEIR
RIRTUREFEBNRTER (CE2F



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into the equity
transfer agreement with independent third parties to purchase
the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Sheng Cheng Dunnan
Enterprise Management Co., Limited (“Dunnan”), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC, with the consideration
of RMB31 million. Dunnan and its subsidiaries are engaged in the
provision of postpartum care services in the PRC. The equity was
transferred in February 2021. Details of the acquisition are set out
in the Company’s announcement and circular dated 27 November
2020 and 23 December 2020 respectively and Note 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 4 December 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties to purchase 54% of
equity share of Wuhan Jiaenbei Health Management Co. Ltd.
(“Jiaenbei”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
with consideration of RMB3.24 million. Jiaenbei is engaged in
provision of postpartum care service in the PRC. The equity was
transferred in January 2021. Details of the acquisition are set out in
Note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as the above, the Group did not have other material
acquisition nor disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

In order to enhance the capital efficiency and to maximize
the return from the working capital of the Group, the Group
reasonably and strategically utilizes the idle funds of the Group to
conduct the subscriptions and disposals of wealth management
products for investment purposes. The Directors took into account
(i) the high liquidity and flexible investment term of each of the
wealth management products in which the Group is able to freely
acquire additional or dispose units of the wealth management
products to cater the capital needs of the Group's operation; (ii)
the risk associated with the wealth management products is low
and each of the wealth management products has a relatively high
credit rating; (iii) the subscriptions and the subsequent disposals
offered a better return than the prevailing fixed-term deposit
interests rates generally offered by commercial banks in the PRC;
and (iv) the subscriptions and disposals have no material impact on
the operations and working capital of the Group.

The significant investments held by the Group which were classified
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income during the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
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ERETRENBRLEEVER -EFE
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EmBAULUREAEREENER TN (i)
By ESARNERRE BXEVERN
ERTHREHRS (INPREEERBELE
RHENERENPEHERTEEBRMHN
BUIERERME, (vBBEERHES
BEHAEENEEREEESTTEERY
2,

rERHE_ST_—F+-_BA=+—H1L:
FEEDEARANTFEEFAEGZERE
EZERKENT

Percentage to
Unrealised/ Fair value the total
Redemption realised as at assets as at
during the gain forthe 31 December 31 December
Name of investment Cost year year 2021 2021
(8
i “B-f
rEE “%-% +ZR=+-H
*2%/ +-B=t+-H ZBEEZ
REEmBH & FEERR BERKE ZATEE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTR  ABBTR  ARETR  ABETR
Jinhui No.20* 20,000 20,402 402 - -
BE_+5
Shengzhong No.10 Sub-plan 3* 10,000 10,053 53 - N
RIBTHFHE=
Guoyuan Antai No.06003 Bond Investment Trust Fund Plan* 15,000 10,136 221 5,085 1.0%

B TR0 AS RESAHSERHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Percentage to
Unrealised/ Fair value the total
Redemption realised as at assets as at
during the gain forthe  31December 31 December
Name of investment Cost year year 2021 2021
()8
S ka3
TEE —%2_-% +ZA=t+-H
*8%/ +-ZB=+-H 2 HBEEZ
REERLE [ FEERE BERWE ZATEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARBT NS ANRBTR
Chuangyuan No. 2 Bond Investment Trust Fund Plan* 10,000 - 56 10,056 1.9%
BmIRESREEREEERHE
Stable Series E13Trust Fund Plan* 10,000 10,183 183 - -
RRAJENBEFERERHE
Xinxiang Series K04 Trust Fund Plan* 15,000 15,368 368 - -
EZRIKMECERBRAE
JingueJinniu No.14 Trust Fund Plan* 10,000 - 121 10,121 1.9%
TR BT URECERETHE
Stable Series E10 Trust Fund Plan* 15,000 5,031 91 10,060 1.9%
BRAJEIEAELERHE
"Qianyuan-Fushunying" open-end investment portfolio* 95,000 95,086 86 - -
"Gn—RIER BN EEESE
China Merchants Bank Ri Ri Xian Wealth 19,300 19,330 30 - -
Management Plan* B R1TH AR/ 312
China Merchants Bank “Chao Zhao Jin"
(multiple stable type) wealth management scheme* 5,600 5,635 35 - -
AERTHAE GnERY)
224,900 191,224 1,646 35,322

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other significant

investment during the year ended 31 December 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
other future plans for material investments or capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees to some
of its customers’ lenders in relation to these customers’ bank loans
amounting to approximately RMB4.6 million (2020: Nil). Details of
the guarantee issued are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 241 employees
(2020: 102 employees) with total staff cost of approximately
RMB36.9 million incurred for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB15.8 million). The employees retirement benefit
expense incurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB4.4 million (2020: RMBO.1 million). As required
by the applicable laws and regulations, the Group participates
in various employee social security plans for our employees that
are administered by local government. The Group’s remuneration
policy rewards employees and Directors based on individual
performance, demonstrated capabilities, involvement, market
comparable information and the performance of the Group. The
Group improves the professional skills and management level of
its employees through internal and external training. To ensure
that the Group attracts and retains competent staff, remuneration
packages are reviewed on a regular basis. Performance bonuses are
offered to qualified employees based on individual and the Group’s
performance. The Group did not experience any material labour
disputes during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Junshen (“Mr. Zhang”) aged 35, was appointed
as a Director on 28 October 2016 and was redesignated as
Executive Director on 13 January 2017. He is also the chairman
of the Board, the chief executive officer, the chairman of the
nomination committee, the compliance officer and the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
strategic planning, operation planning and overall management
of the Group. Mr. Zhang is vice president of Shenzhen Federation
of Young Entrepreneurs*, a committee member of the Eighth
Committee of Shenzhen Federation of Youth* and a member of the
People's Congress Legal Work Committee of Futian District, and
he was elected in 2015 as a deputy to the Sixth Municipal People’s
Congress of Shenzhen*. Mr. Zhang has approximately ten years of
experience in general corporate management and approximately
five years of experience in finance leasing industry. Mr. Zhang is the
elder brother of Mr. Zhang Junwei.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the University of Texas at Arlington
in the United States with an executive master of business
administration degree in December 2014.

Mr. Zhang Yong, aged 36, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 June 2020 and was redesignated as
our Executive Director on 13 May 2021. He is also a member of
the remuneration committee. He is responsible for the overall
business operation, business development and overall management
of our Group. Mr. Zhang Yong has over five years of experience
in investments and capital market management. Since March
2020, Mr. Zhang served as a president of Shenzhen Futian District
Economic Promotion Association. From March 2017 to March
2020, Mr. Zhang Yong worked for China Merchants Shekou
Industrial Zone Holding Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 001979) and his last position held was
as research director. From March 2016 to March 2017, Mr. Zhang
Yong was the manager of the planning division and served as the
secretary to the chief executive within the communications and
finance business department of Ping An Bank. From March 2014 to
March 2016, Mr. Zhang Yong worked at Shenzhen Futian District
Economic Promotion Bureau* (Rl f@H& & E(E#ER) and his
last position held was as section chief.

Mr. Zhang Yong obtained a bachelor degree in management
majoring in accounting, from Southwest University in the PRC
in 2009; and a doctorate degree in economics, majoring in
regional economics, from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERCHREEBREHRS

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lyu Di (“Mr. Lyu”), aged 35, was appointed as our Non-
executive Director on 15 August 2019. He is also a member of
our audit committee. He is responsible for the project investments
and capital market operations of our Group. Mr. Lyu has over
seven years of experience in investments and capital market.
From December 2014 to May 2019, Mr. Lyu worked at Shenzhen
Qianhai Black Swan Asset Management Company Limited with
his last position as fund manager. He worked at Huatai Jinkong
Investment Consulting (Shenzhen) Co Ltd* from October 2013 to
November 2014 with his last position as an analyst and he was also
a representative in Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO") at Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited from March 2014 to November 2014.

Mr. Lyu graduated from Deakin University with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree, majoring in finance in October 2010. He further
obtained a Master of Commerce degree majoring in finance and
banking from the University of Sydney in October 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Chi Fung Leo (“Mr. Chan”), aged 43, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 12 June 2018. He
is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Chan
is responsible for providing independent advice to our Board. Mr.
Chan has over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting
industry. He also has extensive knowledge and expertise on capital
markets transactions (such as initial public offerings, and merger
and acquisitions). Since October 2017, Mr. Chan has been the
responsible officer and managing director of Red Solar Capital
Limited, a company providing advisory services on corporate
finance. From May 2016 to October 2017, Mr. Chan was the
managing director of LY Capital Limited. Since August 2017, Mr.
Chan has been an independent non-executive director of Sisram
Medical Ltd, the shares of which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1696). Since October 2020, Mr. Chan
has also been an independent non-executive director of Jinke Smart
Services Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9666).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in Hong
Kong in November 2001. Mr. Chan has been a member of HKICPA
since October 2005.

Mr. Chow Siu Hang (“Mr. Chow"), aged 45, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 12 June 2018. Mr.
Chow is responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.
Mr. Chow has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting industry. He also has extensive knowledge and expertise
on capital market transactions including initial public offerings,
financial advisory, and merger and acquisitions. All his experience
in the corporate finance market and investment banking enables
him to support the Group’s operations through providing advice
on funding solutions and their intended applications, and to
assist the Group in formulating our overall business strategies and
development plan. Since May 2020, Mr. Chow has been the CEO
and Head of Investment Banking at Eddid Capital Limited. From
April 2018 to April 2020, Mr. Chow was the managing director
of Essence Corporate Finance (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Chow
also worked at Celestial Capital Limited and his last position was
managing director and head of investment banking group. Since
October 2019, Mr. Chow has been an independent non-executive
director of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd., the shares of which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922).

Mr. Chow has been a fellow member of HKICPA and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained
his bachelor’'s degree in accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in November 1998.

Dr. Deng Bin (“"Dr. Deng”), aged 47, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 31 December 2021. He is
also the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of
the nomination committee and a member of the audit committee
of the Company. Dr. Deng is responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board. He was graduated from Xi'an Medical
University (now known as Xi‘an Jiaotong University) in China with
a bachelor of medicine degree in 1999, majoring in Stomatology.
He further graduated from National University of Singapore in
Singapore with a doctor of philosophy degree in 2006, majoring
in dental restoration. Dr. Deng has over 20 years of experience in
Stomatology. He is the chief dental officer of Shenzhen Yixin Dental
Clinic* currently, mainly responsible for clinical fields on dental

implant and restoration.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERCHREEBREHRS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Xiangying (“Ms. Li"”), aged 45, is the joint chief financial
officer of the Group. Ms. Li joined the Group in September
2014 and worked as the chief financial officer of Ziyuanyuan
(Shenzhen) International Finance Leasing Company Limited (“ZYY
Finance Leasing”). She is responsible for overseeing the financial
management, internal audit, cost control, budgeting and other

finance-related matters of the Group.

Ms. Li has over 20 years of experience in the finance and
accounting industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li worked as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Suhao from September 2013
to August 2014. From August 1994 to August 2013, Ms. Li worked
at Shenzhen Pengcheng Accountant* and her last position was a
project manager.

Ms. Li obtained a diploma in electronic data processing accounting
from Hengyang Finance and Industry Polytechnic Institute in the
PRC in June 2011.

Mr. Wong Kwok San (“Mr. Wong”), aged 40, is the joint chief
financial officer and joint company secretary of the Group. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in September 2018 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing financial reporting, investor relations,
statutory compliance and corporate governance of the Group. Mr.
Wong has over 15 years of experience in auditing and accounting
fields. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong served as the financial
controller of a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from October 2014 to July 2018. From October 2007 to
April 2014, Mr. Wong worked for Grant Thornton (later known as
JBPB & Company) and then transferred to BDO Limited with his last
position as manager.

Mr. Wong is currently a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
the HKICPA and obtained a bachelor of business administration
degree in accounting from Lingnan University in November 2003.
He also completed a programme in EMBA and obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in November 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mou Peng (“Mr. Mou”), aged 41, is the deputy general
manager and risk director of the Group. He joined the Group in
May 2014 as the deputy general manager and head of the risk
management department of ZYY Finance Leasing. He is responsible
for overseeing customer due diligence and credit assessment,
supervising post-drawdown performance, and formulating risk
management policies and rules of the Group.

Mr. Mou has over nine years of working experience in risk
management. From April 2013 to January 2014, Mr. Mou was the
project director at Shenzhen Zhongxing Supply Chain Management
Limited*. From March 2012 to January 2013, Mr. Mou served as
manager of the integrated management department at Eternal Asia
Supply Chain Management Ltd*, a company listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002183). In January 2008, Mr. Mou
started to work at Shenzhen Branch of the Postal Savings Bank of
China Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1658) (the “"PSBOC SZ Branch”). In November 2009, he was
promoted to the deputy head of the credit and loan department of
the Xinan Division of the PSBOC SZ Branch, and later left PSBOC SZ
Branch in February 2012.

Mr. Mou obtained a bachelor of business administration degree
from Wuhan University in the PRC in June 2004.

EERCHREEBREHR

EREkE (T8%5E)) M50 BEEERE
KERRREEBE RN _Z—NFHA
MAAER FEERTTREBENREL
ERxEBEENRMTIE - RESEELEHR
MEFBERBIEREAN G BEERIER
WA E R EEBRARA

BRELEBEANFRABREELSR KRB
—=—FNBE_ZE—NE—F  BREER
AP EEEEERATNEBEEEE =
- FEZRE_E-ZF—FREEE
FELEEEFRZMET AT EITIEEE
HEEERKRMHBRLE (BRMHASE 1 002183)
BEEEMMAMNKEE  _ ST NE—HF &
SCAERBER NPT A B H B
REBRITRMDBERAE BRMHBLIE:1658) F
N7 ((HPEBBEHEERTRERINDITY) o7
“EENF+—AAEFEISBESRT
FNDITHLZEZBEERERBEIFE A
BR_E—_FE_PHRATEHBBEER
TR T

ERENR_ZEMERBEERFENR
BEARE O NEIMEES LR

ZanEREEARAE FEHSE 2021

25



26

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERCHREEBREHRS

Mr. Du Dejun (“Mr. Du”), aged 36, is the deputy general
manager and the business development director of the Group.
He joined the Group in 10 August 2014 as project assistant of
ZYY Finance Leasing. He is responsible for assisting the Group’s
business development manager in the supervision of our business
development department.

Mr. Du has approximately eight years of experience in sales and
marketing and business development. From December 2013
to June 2014, he worked as an assistant consultant at Qianhai
Equity Exchange (Shenzhen) Company Limited, a regional equity
market operator and an equity and debt financing platform for
SMEs. From December 2012 to May 2013, he worked at Shenzhen
Lingjin Culture Communication Co. Ltd.* (“Lingjin"”) as a business
manager of its sales team. From April 2012 to November 2012,
Mr. Du worked at Shenzhen Linghang Financial Management
Consultancy Co. Ltd*, an associated company of Lingjin. From
January 2010 to March 2012, Mr. Du worked as a client manager
at Shenzhen Yazi Advertising Co. Ltd*.

Mr. Du graduated from East China University of Technology, the
PRC with a bachelor’s degree in software engineering in July 2009.
He also completed the advanced training course for specialised
talents* in finance at the School of Economics, Peking University,
the PRC in July 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Group's
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as
set out in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”), the Company adopted and complied with,
where applicable, the CG Code to ensure that the Group’s business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Board, other than the deviation from code
provision A.2.1, the Company complied with the provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during
the Reporting Period. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

A.1 Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility
for promoting the success of the Company by providing
effective leadership and direction to its business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of its
operations. The Board reserves its decisions for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control systems, risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Board
has the full support of the management to discharge its
responsibilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELARS

The day to day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to executive
Directors and the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
any significant transactions entered into by the above
mentioned officers. All Directors have full and timely
access to all relevant information of the Company,
with a view to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations in Cayman Islands and
Hong Kong are followed. Each Director is normally able
to seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company'’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the board committees of the
Company. Further details of the board committees of
the Company are set out below in this report.

The Board is also responsible for, among others,
performing the corporate governance duties as set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include:

- to develop and review the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and
senior management;

- review and monitor the Group's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to the Directors and employees; and
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A.2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

- to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance coverage for all the Directors, including
company securities, employment practices, regulatory
crisis event, investigation, litigation, tax liabilities and
public relation, etc., which is to be reviewed by the
Board on a regular basis.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operation
responsibility to the management of the Company
under the supervision of the executive Directors and
various Board committees. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entering into by the foregoing
officers and senior management.

Board Composition

The Board comprised the following Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Yong (redesignated on 13 May 2021)

Mr. Zhang Junwei (resigned on 13 May 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lyu

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan

Mr. Chow

Dr. Deng (appointed on 31 December 2021)

Mr. Lin Weibin (appointed on 13 May 2021 and
resigned on 31 December 2021)

A.2
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EXELARS

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“"Nomination Committee” or “"NC”) ensures the
composition of the Board constitutes a balance of
skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of
perspective appropriate to the requirements of the
business and development of the Company. The
current Board composition of two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent
non executive Directors (the “INEDs”) can effectively
exercise independent judgment. The list of all Directors
(by category) is set out under the section headed
“Corporate Information” in this annual report and is
also disclosed in all corporate communications issued
by the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules
from time to time. The INEDs are expressly identified in
all corporate communications of the Company. Except
Mr. Zhang Junwei is the brother of Mr. Zhang, there
is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) between
the Board members, and in particular, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
has at all times met the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The participation of INEDs in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on
issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance,
conflicts of interests and management process to ensure
that the interests of all Shareholders of the Company
have been duly considered. Each of the INED has
confirmed in writing his independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Board considers that all the INEDs are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the
Board, which is appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Save as elsewhere disclosed in this annual report, the
Board members has no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also
disclosed in this annual report and all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules from time to time. The Company also
maintains on its website (www.ziyygroup.com) and on
the GEM's website (www.hkgem.com) an updated list of
current Directors (by category) identifying their roles and
functions.
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A.3 Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company had complied with the code provisions in
the CG Code.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
and is responsible for major decision-making and
implementation of business strategies of the Group. The
Chairman also takes the lead to ensure that the Board
works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company by encouraging the Directors to make active
contributions to Board's affairs and promoting a culture
of openness and debate.

Code Deviation

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board is of the view that
although Mr. Zhang is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals and meets regularly to discuss
issues affecting operations of the Company. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Group to make
and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The
Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that
his appointment to the posts of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is beneficial to the business prospects
of the Company.
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A.4 Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term
of three (3) years unless terminated by either party by
giving at least three (3) month’s written notice to the
other. The non-executive Director and each of the INEDs
has respectively entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three (3) years
unless terminated by either party by giving at least three
(3) month’s written notice to the other.

Pursuant to the Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, all the Directors appointed by the Board
to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting, therefore, all current Directors will retire at
the conclusion of 2022 AGM and be eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM. The Board
and the Nomination Committee of the Company has
recommended the re-election of all the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors are laid down in the
Articles of Association. The Company has established a
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and
its primary functions are to make recommendations to
the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the
Board and policies/practices on corporate governance
of the Group. Details of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and its work performed are set
out in the “Board Committees” section below.
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A.5

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development for Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the Group structure,
Board and Board Committees meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Company,
etc. and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements in the Cayman Islands
and Hong Kong. During the year, all the Directors
participated in the induction program regarding
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules conducted by the Company’s legal adviser,
which covered, among other topics, the CG Code, GEM
Listing Rules and directors’ continuing obligations.

All Directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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According to the records maintained by the Company,
the Directors received the following training regarding
roles, function and duties of a director of a listed
company or professional skills in compliance with
the new requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year and up to the
date of this annual report:

EEERERS

BEXARATDFEZSHR RLES
HREXAERAARE EF8
REXEATIARTEERLE
RZHMRE BZUTHABLD
NABRZAB - BEABENR
BEREZEI

Attending seminars/
induction training/
reading materials

HEMSE
N 3::1
SEEu kS
Executive Directors BHITES
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and SRIACE ( EERITHBABED
Chief Executive Officer) v/
Mr. Zhang Yong (redesignated on REEE (RZEZ—F
13 May 2021) EBE+=H#BED v
Mr. Zhang Junwei REBEEE (RZEZ—F
(resigned on 13 May 2021) EB+=HEMT v
Non-executive Director EHRITES
Mr. Lyu 24 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BiuERITES
Mr. Chan BT HE v
Mr. Chow Bt v/
Dr. Deng WMEL (B2 -—F
(appointed on 31 December 2021) +ZA=+—B%¥Z%MF 4
Mr. Lin Weibin (appointed on 13 May 2021  MEREE R T _—
and resigned on 31 December 2021) hAE+=BHEZEK
RIE—FtHA=1+—H
BE1E) v

Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and
materials to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge
and skills from time to time. All the information and
materials are relevant to the Group’s business, the
economy, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or
directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to each Director. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expense. The company
secretary is responsible to keep records of training taken

by each Director.
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A.6 Board Meetings
A.6.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG
Code, the Board should meet regularly and Board
meetings should be held at least four times a year
for reviewing and approving financial statements,
operating performance, budgets, rules and
regulations, announcements and circulars issued
by the Company and considering and approving
the progress of the various on going projects, the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Annual meeting schedules of each
meeting of the Board and for the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Committees”)
are normally made available to Directors and
members in advance. Board members are provided
with all agenda and adequate information for
their review at least 14 days before the meetings.
The Board and Board Committees members are
supplied with comprehensive meeting papers and
relevant materials within a reasonable period of
time in advance of the intended meeting date
(in any event no less than 3 days before the date
of the meeting). All Directors and the Board
Committees members are given opportunities to
include matters in the agenda for regular Board
and Board Committees meetings and/or their
meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision
making process, the Directors and the Board
Committees members are free to have access
to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required.
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After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated
to all Directors and Committees’ members for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committees are kept by the
company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors at all times.

Directors may participate in meetings either
in person or through electronic means of
communications. Directors are free to contribute
and share their views at meetings and major
decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered to
have conflict of interests or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant
events or important issues are required to be
discussed and resolved.
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RER > BFFEHR/NQB)R

EREFEITZH-BZEFZ

During the year, the Board convened eight(8) full
Board meetings. The attendance of each Director is

as follows: HEBERIOT .
Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend
tE/ AEREEEERY
Board RC AC NC
EE nWzEE BRZEE R4ZEE
Executive Directors YiTES
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and RS (FRRATEHA)
Chief Executive Officer) 8 N/A R NA FEH 3
Mr. Zhang Yong REAE(W-F--F
(redesignated on 13 May 2021)  RA+=H:EM) 8 1 2 2
Mr. Zhang Junwei REREE 2 1 NA FEA NA FEHE
Non-executive Director FHTEZ
Mr. Lyu BRE 8 NA T E 4 NA FEHE
Independent Non-executive BUERTES
Directors
Mr. Chan REE 8 1 4 3
Mr. Chow Ax4E 8 N/A TR N/A R N/A TR
Dr. Deng (appointed on HEL (5%
31 December 2021) +ZR=1+—-BEZ%f) - - - -
Mr. Lin Weibin (appointed on 13 MEREE (RZE-—%
May 2021 and resigned on 31 LBT=HEZEK
December 2021) RZBZ-F
+ZA=1T—HED 5 - 2 -

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring
Board approval were arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions of all Board
members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and
by written resolutions were well-documented.
Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company and are
available to all Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely,
the audit committee (“Audit Committee” or "AC"), the
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”
or "RC") and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
Committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the GEM's website
at www.hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.
ziyygroup.com. All the Board Committees should report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.
The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board Committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out above.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company’s expense.

B.1 Remuneration Committee

The Company established the RC pursuant to a
resolution of passed on 12 June 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The primary functions of the RC are to (i) make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, (ii) review performance based remuneration
and (iii) ensure none of the Directors determine their
own remuneration.

As at 31 December 2021, the RC comprises a total of
three members, namely, Dr. Deng, Mr. Zhang Yong and
Mr. Chan.
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Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration of the members of the Board and
the senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The members of the RC should meet at least once a
year. During the year and up to the date of this annual
report, the individual attendance records of the each
Director at the meeting of the RC is set out on page 38
of this annual report.

Set out below is a summary of the work and related
tasks performed by the RC during the year:

- reviewed the summary of remuneration package
paid to each Directors and senior management of
the Company;

- studied the current remuneration package,
policy and structure of all Directors (including
appointment(s), resignation(s) and retirement(s)
during the year);
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- proposed remuneration packages with reference
to the duties and responsibilities of Directors,
business performance and profitability of the
Group and market conditions, the corporate
objective and goal set by the Board and a report
of salaries paid by the comparable companies to
directors and senior management; and

- reviewed the procedures of remuneration
policy, procedures and structure for fixing the
remuneration packages.

B.2 Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2021, the AC currently consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan, Mr. Lyu and Dr. Deng. Mr. Chan currently serves
as the chairman of the AC, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules
5.05(2) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the AC are mainly to review the
financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system,
audit plan and relationship with external auditors and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The members of the AC should meet not less than twice
a year to consider interim report and annual report
prepared by the Board and meet the external auditors
at least twice a year. During the year and up to the date
of this annual report, the individual attendance records
of each Director at the meeting of the AC is set out on
page 38 of this annual report.
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B.3

During the year, the AC met 5 times and performed the
following major tasks:

- Review and discussion of the quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements, results announcements
and reports, the related accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the relevant
audit findings;

- Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of
the Group;

- Review the internal control reports submitted by
the internal audit department of the Group; and

- Discussion and recommendation of the re-
appointment of external auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee paid/
payable to auditors in respect of audit service and/or
non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group
were as follows:

RER BREZEGTRTRE
B METUTEERTE:

- EBRAkIRTE -THKRE
EMHERE FERASTRER
S AEBERMZAERE S
JR B R 1B 5 LU 48 A &8 1%
B

- REkIwEIEERZAR
EERABEESEZMN
M

- BRAEBERIESER
BN EERRE 5 &

- AmkEZREBINEBEZHE
ik

BE_T_—F+t_HA=+—H
IEFE o BB A A R 1t
Z IR K HIFZBUARFE T
BN EAZEEZERMT

RMB'000
Nature of services R#EME AR¥TF T
Audit services EIZRTE 1,079
Nomination Committee B3 IRHRZEET

The principal duties of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee are to (i) review the Board
composition; (ii) develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of
directors; (iii) identify qualified individuals to become
members of the Board; (iv) monitor the appointment
and succession planning of directors; and (v) assess the
independence of INEDs.
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As at 31 December 2021, the NC consists of one
executive Director, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang, Mr. Chan and Dr. Deng.
Mr. Zhang currently serves as the chairman of the NC.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board,
the summary of which are set out below:

- With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development;

- In designing the Board’'s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service; and

- All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The members of the NC should meet at least once
a year where appointment of the Directors will be
considered. During the year and up to the date of this
annual report, the individual attendance records of the
each Nomination Committees at the meeting of the NC
is set out on page 38 of this annual report.

The principal duties of the NC are to (i) review the
Board composition; (ii) develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of
directors; (iii) identify qualified individuals to become
members of the Board; (iv) monitor the appointment
and succession planning of directors; and (v) assess the
independence of INEDs.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the NC met once
and performed the following major tasks:

Review and discussion of the existing structure,
size and composition of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of
the Group;

Assessment of the independence of the existing
INEDs;

Recommendation on the re-appointment of
retiring Directors at the AGM pursuant to the
Articles of Association;

Review and development of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the board;

Review and monitoring of the training and
continuous professional development of directors
and senior management;

Review and monitoring of the Company’'s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

Review and monitoring of the code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors; and

Review of the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on the
corporate governance matters and facilitating induction and
professional development of the Directors. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, are followed.

Mr. Wong Kwok San and Ms. Li Xinpei were appointed as
the Joint Company Secretaries of the Group on 28 August
2018 and 13 January 2017 respectively. Both Mr. Wong Kwok
San and Ms. Li Xinpei have complied with all the required
qualifications, experiences and training requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December
2021, both of Mr. Wong Kwok San and Ms. Li Xinpei
complied with the GEM Listing Rules by taking not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the
Group and are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards and principles, applicable laws and disclosure
provisions required of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore the Directors continue
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditors, BDO
Limited, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 97
to 104 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

A nomination and corporate governance committee has
been established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Directors will review the Group's corporate governance
policies and compliance with CG Code each financial year
and comply with the “comply or explain” principle in the
corporate governance report which will be included in the
annual reports after the Listing.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors (the “Required
Standard”). Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Required
Standard during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of
the Required Standard as written guidelines for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company. Such relevant employees did and would abide
by the provisions of the Required Standard. Besides, the
Company has adopted internal control policy in relation to
the disclosure of inside information of the Company (the
“Inside Information Policy”).

No incident of non compliance of the Required Standard and/
or the Inside Information Policy by such relevant employees
was noted by the Company from the Listing Date up to the
date of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s internal control
system to safeguard the assets of the Group and shareholder
investments. The internal control system of the Group aims
to facilitate effective and efficient operation which in turn
minimises the risks to which the Group is exposed. The system
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or losses.

The Board has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, covering financial, operational and
legal compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Directors consider that the Group has implemented
appropriate procedures for safeguarding the Group’s assets
against unauthorised use or misappropriation, maintaining
proper accounting records, segregation of duties and putting
plans and routines into execution with appropriate authority
and in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has an internal audit function. The Company’s
internal audit department identifies the risks of the Group,
and independently reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems, including financial,
operational and compliance, in the key activities of the
Company’s business. The internal audit department reports
to the Audit Committee, and submits regular reports for its
review in accordance with the approved review and audit
mechanisms. The department submits a detailed report at
least once a year to the Board for its review and monitors
the risks identified and the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control and risk management of the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review
report submitted by internal audit department and the
Company's risk management and internal control systems in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and considered
that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the
Audit Committee and concurred the same.
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The Group adopts a risk management framework which
comprises the following processes:

- Identify significant risk in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on
the Group's business;

- Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

- The Group established an organizational structure
with clear operating and reporting procedures, lines of
responsibility and delegated authority;

- Each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls
and procedures appropriate to its structure whilst
complying with the Group’s policies, standards and
guidelines;

- Relevant executive Directors and senior management
have been delegated with specific accountability for
monitoring the performance of designated business
operating units;
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- A systematic review of the financial and business
processes in order to provide management on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls.
Where weaknesses are identified in the system of
internal controls, management will evaluate and take
necessary measures to ensure that improvements are
implemented; and

- Code of ethics are established and adhered to by all
employees to ensure high standards of conduct and
ethical values in all business practices.

The Board reviewed that the risk management and internal
control system adopted by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 and considered that it was effective.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has approved and adopted the Inside Information
Policy for the Company since the Listing Date for monitoring
inside information to ensure compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information as set out in the Inside
Information Policy are summarised below:

Handling of Inside Information

1. Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to the
Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the Board
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. In cases
where a decision by the Board is pending or in cases
of incomplete negotiations, the Group shall implement
the procedures set out in the Inside Information Policy
to maintain the confidentiality of information. Until an
announcement is made, the Directors should ensure
that such information is kept strictly confidential. If the
confidentiality cannot be maintained, an announcement
shall be made as soon as practicable.
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2. Each department shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of inside
information, they shall inform the Directors and the
Company Secretary immediately, so that remedial
actions, including making an inside information
announcement, can be taken at the earliest opportunity.

3. The Group’s Finance Department shall keep track of
the Group’s threshold levels for disclosure pursuant
to the size tests under the GEM Listing Rules, so that
an announcement can be made as soon as practicable
should a notifiable transaction arises.

Dissemination of Inside Information
Inside information is announced promptly through the
websites of the GEM (www.hkgem.com) and the Company
(www.ziyygroup.com). The electronic publication system of
the GEM is the first channel of dissemination of the Group's
information before any other channel.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board puts great emphasis on investor relationship in
particular fair disclosure and comprehensive report of the
Company's performance and activities.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings
of the Company and the Directors always make efforts to
fully address any questions raised by the Shareholders at the
annual general meetings (the “AGM") and the extraordinary
general meetings (the “"EGM") of the Company.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 27
May 2022 (the “2022 AGM"), the notice of which shall be
sent to the Company’s shareholders in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company, the GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’'s Hong Kong branch registrar
and transfer office, namely, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
whose contact details are stated in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may deposit a requisition to convene
an EGM of the Company and state the purpose therefore to
the Board or the Company Secretary.

The Company has adopted Communications Policy with
Shareholders and investors of the Company that provide
ready, equal and timely access to understandable information
about the Company. The Board welcomes Shareholders
for their comments and/or enquiries about the Company.
Shareholders may send their comments and/or enquiries to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposal for the
Company’s consideration at the general meetings of the
Company can send their proposal to the Company Secretary.

Pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, if a
Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than retiring
Directors for election as a Director at a general meeting of
the Company, the Shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong within the 7 day
period commencing the day after the despatch of the notice
of the meeting (or such other period as may be determined
and announced by the Directors from time to time). The
relevant procedures is posted on the Company’s website
(www.ziyygroup.com).
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The shareholders of the Company may at any time send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing. Contact
details are as follows:

Address:  Unit N2, 21/F., W Luxe, 5 On Yiu Street, Sha Tin,
New Territories, Hong Kong

E-mail: info@ziyuanyuan.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to
the Board and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the
investment community to engage actively with the Company,
the Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining on-going dialogue with the Shareholders as
follows:

(a) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued
in printed form and are available on the GEM’s website
and the Company’s website;

(b) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of
the GEM of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(c) corporate information is made available on the
Company’s website;

(d) AGM and EGM provide a forum for the Shareholders to
make comments and exchange views with the Directors
and senior management; and

(e) the Company’s share registrars serve the Shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment, change
of Shareholders’ particulars and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no amendment in the constitutional documents of
the Company. The Articles of Association of the Company are
available on the websites of the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as

the "Group”, the "Company” or “we") is pleased to present its
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”
or the “Report”). This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with
disclosure obligations under the “comply or explain” provisions
contained in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the "ESG Guide"”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The purpose is to allow all stakeholders to learn more
about the Group's progress and development direction in respect
of operation and sustainable development. The Group understands
the importance of the ESG report and is committed to making
continuous improvements in corporate social responsibility during
our course of business in order to better respond to the changing

needs of the advancing society.

APPLICABLE SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD
OF THE REPORT

This report covers the Group's overall environmental, social and
governance performance and selected key performance indicators
("KP1") during 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”). A complete index is appended in the last
chapter hereof for reading this Report in accordance with the ESG
Guide.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

The information contained herein is sourced from official
documents and statistics of the Group, and management and
operation information collected in accordance with the Group’s
systems. This report was approved by the board of directors on 31
March 2022.

OPINIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group attaches great importance to valuable opinions from
all stakeholders. If you are in any doubt or have any opinion
for this report, please feel free to contact the Group via E-mail
info@ziyuanyuan.com to share your opinions and suggestions.
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders’ engagement is essential to the formulation of
strategies for sustainable development. It allows the Group to
understand risks and opportunities. The Group has identified
key stakeholders that are important to the Group's business and
established various channels for communication.

Stakeholders Expectation

FhENSH

Communication Channel
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WEE - BAEERBRARBNKE ~EH
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FURYTEEBBER

Key Measures to Respond

FinE FEHA EBEAR EIFERY X B
Government - Comply with the laws - On-site inspections and The Group operated and managed according

- Tax payment according

to laws
- Promote regional

economic development

and employment

13453 - BTEE
— KERR
- HBEAKEERK

checks

Research and discussion
through work
conferences, work
reports preparation and
submission for approval
Publish information on
HKEXnews website,

such as annual and
interim reports and
announcements
Company's website
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to laws, strengthened safety management,
cooperated with government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation (if any), and
actively undertaken social responsibilities.
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Expectation

FaHA

Communication Channel

BEAR

RIR HERERERS

Key Measures to Respond

O] FEBY = EHE 5E

Shareholders and
Investors

RERKREE

Employees

Return on investment
Information disclosure
and transparency
Shareholders’ interests
and fair treatment and
security

Control of operational
risk

REMEH

BB RERE
B m kA FRE
RIE

0 LA A
GEAREE

Safeguard the rights
and interests of
employees
Occupational health
and safety

Working environment
Career development
opportunities
Self-actualization
RI% & B RV R K7
BEEREZE
TRIRER
BERERKE
BERER

Annual general meeting
and other general
meetings

Publish information on
HKEXnews website,
such as annual, interim,
quarterly reports and
announcements
Meeting with investors
and analysts
Company's website
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BREZERDMMGE
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Conferences

Trainings and seminars
Cultural and sport
activities

Intranet and emails
Performance appraisals
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B

B R g
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The Group has issued notices of general

meetings and proposed resolutions
according to regulations, disclosed

the Group's information by publishing
announcements/notices and periodic
reports. The Group has also carried out
different forms of investor activities, such
as results briefing, with an aim to enhance
investors' recognition. The Group disclosed
the Company'’s contact details on website
and in reports to ensure all communication
channels are available and effective.
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The Group aims to provide a healthy and

safe working environment and develops a
fair mechanism for promotion. The Group
has established labour unions at all levels
to provide communication platforms for
employees.
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Stakeholders Communication Channel

Expectation

Key Measures to Respond

Fin& FEHA EBEBR [EIFERY E E
Customers - Safe and high-quality - Website, brochures and The Group has developed a customer
products and services published information feedback system in order to evaluate
- Stable relationships on HKEXnews website, services provided.
- Information such as annual, interim,
transparency quarterly reports and
- Integrity announcements
— Business ethics - Emails and customer
service hotlines
- Feedback forms
- Regular meetings
=R - Z2BEEGERE — HL-EEM-EERE FEERERTFLBRG LETEAMEMRN
— BERME PR B 7 iR hER B o
- BRBHE MER -PBERFERS
- #E SN
- BEER — BEBRERRBHE
- BRE#EX
- THEg=Z
Suppliers/Business - Long-term - Business meetings, The Group has invited tenders publicly

Partners

partnerships
- Honest cooperation
- Fairness and openness
- Information resources
sharing
- Risk reduction

supplier conferences,
phone calls and
interviews

Regular meetings
Reviews and assessments
Emails, circulars and
manuals

Company's website

to select the best suppliers/business
partners performed contracts according

to agreements, enhanced daily
communications, and established long-term
cooperation with quality suppliers/business
partners.
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Stakeholders Expectation

RinE a8 BEAR

Communication Channel

RIR HERERERS

Key Measures to Respond

O] FEBY = EHE 5E

Peer/Industry - Experience sharing -

Associations — cooperation - Site visits
- Fair competitions

B /1TEBE - £R9=E - 1T%8=

HE - Bff — BEMEH
- REHEF

Market Regulators - Compliance with laws

and regulations - Reports
- Information disclosures
mEEEE — BFERER - BEfHE
- BRKE - WA
Public - Community - Voluntary work
involvement - Charity and social
- Social responsibilities investments
- Employment
promotion
HEAR - ftE2H - RIIfF
- HE8HE - BENHERE
— {RERE

Materiality Assessment

The management and employees that perform major functions
in the Group have all participated in preparing the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing its operation, identifying relevant ESG
matters, and assessing the importance of such relevant matters
to our business and stakeholders. Information was collected from
relevant departments and business units of the Group based on the
major ESG matters that had been assessed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that appropriate
and effective management policies and control systems for ESG
matters have been established and that the disclosed contents
are in compliance with the requirements of the Reporting Guide.
Corporate governance is addressed separately in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of the Annual Report.

Industry conferences

Information disclosure

The Group has insisted on fair competitions,
cooperated with peers to realise win-win
situations, shared experience and attended
various seminars of the industry so as to
promote sustainable development of the
industry.

BEEATHRP HERESE BRER P=F
K 2MERBITEMA S HHITENT
FERE-

The Group has strictly complied with
regulatory requirements and disclosed and
reported true information in a timely and
accurate manner according to laws.

FEBBRBETEERT  REBEEERF %
MR ERZREEER -

The Group has given priority to local
citizens in respect of job opportunities so
as to promote community building and
development and maintained smooth
communication channels between the
Group and the community.
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RIE - HEREREKS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group mainly provides customers with finance leasing solutions
and related ancillary services. The sector where the Group operates
is not a major source of environmental pollution. In addition,
the business of the Group does not involve industrial activities.
Therefore, total amount of emissions, resource usage and waste
production is relatively low.

However, the Group believes that it is the social responsibility of all
corporations to ensure that emissions of pollutants and resource
consumption are minimised and carbon emissions is reduced.
For such purpose, the Group aims to achieve its stated goals by
reducing carbon dioxide emissions, resource consumption and
waste production.

A1. Emissions Management

Exhaust Emission

The exhaust emission of the Group mainly derives from the
fuels used by vehicles. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had two vehicles which consumed an aggregate of 7,345.75
litres of gasoline and travelled 58,766 km in total. Due to
the business nature of the Group, employees take public
transport to visit customers’ companies and vehicles of the
Group are used only in special cases. Meanwhile, the Group
encourages employees to take electric public transport
whenever possible for meetings or activities and reduce
the use of private cars. For activities at nearer destinations,
the Group encourages employees to walk as far as possible
instead of taking the transportation.

During the Reporting Period, exhaust emissions were as
follows:

IRIGEE
AERFTERNETRREBEEERRLTE
RABRERBCE IRFS > PRAE SR IL JFIRIZ 75
WEBRBE U REBREBT NI K
ITXEH RAEER EREBNERYE
EHEVEBETEERE-

PR AEER B BRI RYBBERANER
BHERERBIR DRI EMMA T E
BEENUHEEE R/ FEESEES
B> — R ACHBEIRE ~ B BE IR H AR ~ B
BYEEMETREER

Al. HEBERE

BER B
AEENERFEMETEREER
R ER 822" -_—F+°A4
=t+—B AEEHEEEWMME EH
FEAMAT, 34575 R BITHAES
58,766 A B o ERNAEBMAPI XK IS >
EEINFHFEAATDEHEAALTE
TE REEFHREBERIERERS
WoRER AEBEZBETESMING
RN TBRO BEFERAENLAHER
BTE RVFERARBEHE B
BN EES AEEEBETREN
TR BEREBERBEBILR

PREEHAA BERIFWAT ¢

Amount of

Emissions (kg)

Type of Exhaust EEEELE M E ()
Nitrogen oxides Ea=R ek 4.407
Sulphur oxides (k7| 0.073
Particulate emissions SRR 0.293
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group’s main sources of greenhouse gas emissions
are direct emissions from vehicles, indirect emissions from
electricity consumption for office operation and indirect
emissions from employees taking planes for business trips.
The Group attaches great importance to adopting the
energy saving initiatives as mentioned in the section “Use of
Resources”, and reduce the impact of these emissions on the
environment by monitoring energy consumption and reducing
itineraries which require the Group’s senior management
taking private cars.

Greenhouse gas emissions are partly generated from
combusting gasoline by the three vehicles owned by
the Group. The Group’s vehicles are mainly used by the
senior management to commute between Hong Kong and
Shenzhen. However, in consideration of environmental
protection and cost saving, the senior management chose to
take the public transport for commuting between Shenzhen
and Hong Kong.

Meanwhile, greenhouse gas emissions are also generated
from electricity consumption for the operation in the Group's
office. The Group aims to reduce electricity consumption
in daily operation as the amount of indirect greenhouse
gas emissions depend on the units of electricity consumed.
Specific measures adopted by the Group to reduce electricity
consumption are set out in the section headed “Use of
Resources—Electricity” of this Report.

During the Reporting Period, employees travelled by plane
104 times for business trips. Those trips by plane generated
an aggregate of 13 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions.
Employees only take plane for business trips when necessary
as the Group pursues the policy of emissions reduction.
Under normal circumstances, the Group will arrange for
conference calls or video conferences instead of face-to-face
meetings to reduce indirect greenhouse gas emissions from
transportation.
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During the Reporting Period, greenhouse gas emissions were

as follows:

REBSHA BEREBHFRUOT

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit Amount
BERBEBERK B B2
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 20
#HE—BEBEHN MR ICIREE
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 447
#HE2—EREEHN MR ICIREE
Scope 3 - Other Indirect Emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 13
#HES—HEMEEHR MR ICIREE
Total Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 480
we M _EibiE S

Waste and Wastewater

Solid waste produced by the Group was mainly generated
from daily office operation, including daily paper usage, office
document waste and food waste by employees. All domestic
waste is uniformly classified, collected and disposed by the
property management office of the office building on a
regular basis.

The Group is committed to reducing waste production and
encourages employees to recycle stationery and reduce waste
with an aim to reduce waste production from the source.
Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital operation model
to centralise the handling of documents and regularly convey
environmental protection messages to employees. Permission
is also required for printing in the office for statistics and
adjustments in respect of paper usage in order to enhance
resource utilization.
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The Group has established appropriate measures for the
disposal of computer and related products, such as printers
and toner cartridges. The Group transfers or reuses excess
digital products, while obsolete accessories or used toner
cartridges are collected by third party companies for recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group also
encourages employees to collect and classify the waste
before disposing so as to reduce negative impacts on the
environment.

No hazardous wastewater was generated by the Group
during the Reporting Period as the only type of wastewater
produced was domestic wastewater from daily office
operation. Domestic wastewater is directly discharged to the
sewer network and is treated by local municipal wastewater
treatment plants. During the Reporting Period, domestic
wastewater generated by the Company was solely controlled
by the property management company. In this case, it is not
feasible for the Group to provide wastewater data as there
is no sub-meter to record the data. As wastewater volume
depends on water consumption, specific measures have been
adopted by the Company to reduce water consumption,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Use of
Resources — Water” of this ESG Report.

Use of Resources

The Group attaches great importance to the effective use of
resources, and is committed to reducing waste of resources
in daily operation. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has complied with relevant laws and regulations in relation
to the use of energy. Since the Group has not engaged in
the manufacturing business, no problem was encountered in
identifying suitable water source and no packaging materials
were used. Resources used by the Group were mainly
electricity, water and paper.

A2.
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Electricity

The Company acknowledges the importance of energy
saving and the fact that reducing electricity consumption will
indirectly reduce greenhouse gas emissions so the Group has
promoted various energy saving strategies. To strengthen
each employee’s awareness on environmental protection
and energy saving, the Group has placed reminders of “For
electricity saving, please switch off the light when leaving”
at prominent places in the office. The Group encourages
employees to set office air conditioner at a moderate
temperature and switch them off when they are not in use to
reduce electricity consumption.

All electricity consumption by the Group was directly from
daily office operation. During the Reporting Period, total
electricity consumption of the Group amounted to 1,194,506
kWh.

Water

Water was mainly consumed by staff at work in the Group.
To improve the utilisation efficiency of water resource,the
Group and all its employees have laid emphasis on water
conservation and are committed to saving every drop of the
precious water resource through practicable but effective
ways, for examples, promote to and educate employees to
save water regularly, place water saving slogans in prominent
places and encourage water conservation and report to
the property management company to fix dripping taps
immediately when the taps are broken. During the Reporting
Period, the water consumption of the Group reached 20,678
m3.

Paper

The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to minimise paper usage at the office. Employees
are encouraged to use both sides of paper, and the back of
single-sided documents is used for printing or as draft paper.
If possible, employees may use the suitable font size and
indentation to minimise the pages. Besides, electronic media
is recommended for circulation and communication so as to
minimise paper usage. During the Reporting Period, the total
office paper consumption was 1.5 tonnes.
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During the Reporting Period, total resource consumption was
as follows:

RIR HERERERS

RESHA ERERBHEENT

Use of Resources Unit Amount
BEAR ==K i =
Electricity consumption kWh 1,194,506
BIIEFE TR

Water consumption Cubic metres 20,678
KHFE L5 K

Paper consumption Tonnes 1.5
ARHFE i

The Group will keep recording its resource consumption for
reviewing effectiveness of its conservation measures in the
future and formulating more specific improvement measures
and objectives.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Regarding the operation of the Group, the Group was
not aware of any significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources. With the implementation
of green office measures, the Group strived to minimise
impacts on the environment and natural resources. The Group
will continue to implement environment-friendly practices
in the Group’s operation in order to enhance environmental
sustainability.

A3.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group regards employees as the cornerstone of its corporate
operation and development. Therefore, the Group attaches
great importance to the training and welfare of employees, and
are committed to providing a working environment with job
satisfaction. The Group provides competitive remuneration and
sound promotion opportunities to facilitate career development of
employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
labour legislations and related regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The Group was not involved in any violation relating to
labour practices and would have a significant impact on the Group.

B1. Employees

The Group aims to attract and retain talents, ensures a safe
and equal working environment for employees, provides
development opportunities and promotes employees’ health
and well-being. The Group has formulated the staff manual
according to relevant labour regulations, covering the Group's
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, leave and standards of other rights and
benefits. The Group strictly complied with the Labour Law
of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and other
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 241
employees, with the employee structure as follows:

HEEE

B AR5 TER
FEEREESEEREERERNER
IEHEM+DEREENEIIREN > BIER
H—EAERERN IFRE AEREHA
BFEIFHMKEURBEFNEAEE UL
REEINEXRER-

RB|BEMA AEEBRRETHEKRERDN
5 TEBI R ARREAR » W80 K B {2 (R AH B8
THAEBREEARZENCHRIDERSEF-

B1. {E{&
BMURSIMEBATAHBE-BHH
PN EERRZERFENITIER
B AREBRERE U RRBEETINR
BRIt -AEBERBBEMS EHE
HEIE(EIFMY EFRREAEE
EHWNARE BEEASH  TIER
B ARERBUREMERERT S
EREE  AEBBREETHEL
A FESHERERTEEMBER
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A

Male Female
Employees Employees Total
Age Group FEHH R BHES ZHES =5
21 to 30 21-303% 13 112 125
31 to 40 31-40%% 31 52 83
41 to 50 41-50%% 10 17 27

51 to 60 51-60%% - 4
61 to 70 61-703% - 2 2
Total PNt 54 187 241
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Male Female
Employees Employees Total
Region & BHEE RHES aF
Mainland China FR B 7 3t 51 187 238
Other Regions Outside R P dth DA S E A 3 &
Mainland China 3 - 3
Total A 54 187 241
Male Female
Employees Employees Total
Employment type E{ELER BEES ZHES =1
Full-time and contracted 2REEH 54 187 241
Others (part-time, Hh GRE - TSR
fixed-term or casual) - - -
Total RAH 54 187 241
A total of 498 employees left the Group in 2021, with NZEZ—F> —HB498%EER

statistics of such employees as follows:

B U TRESBERAS

Employee

Male Female turnover

Employees Employees Total rate

FH=PiES

Age Group FH AR EEE ZHREE &5t tb =
21 to 30 21-305% 4 371 375 300.0%
31 to 40 31-405% 15 78 93 112.0%
41 to 50 41-50%% 1 29 30 111.1%
Total BAE 20 478 498 206.6%
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Talent Recruitment and Retention

Employees are the core assets to maintaining corporate
competitiveness, and the key to corporate success. The
Group provides a fair and impartial talent selection system
and continuously improves the system to recruit talents. The
Group has formulated an annual recruitment plan and filled
job vacancies based on the principle of “internal staffs before
external candidates” in order to offer internal promotion
and re-designation opportunities to existing employees. The
Group recruits external candidates through the Company's
website, recruitment website, job market, newspapers and
media, headhunting companies and employee’s referral. The
Group ensures that the recruitment and promotion processes
are fair, open and transparent, and selects candidates
depending on objective factors such as candidates’ working
experience, skills, academic background, communication
skills, personal qualities.

The Group adheres to the principle of employing talents
with both ability and moral integrity, and regards morality,
knowledge, ability and performance as the main evaluation
criteria, so as to put talents at suitable positions and retain
talents. The Group has formulated a set of staff performance
appraisal mechanism, in which appropriate remuneration
adjustment is made annually based on staff performance to
reduce talent loss.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group provides staff with reasonable and competitive
remuneration and staff benefits. Based on work performance,
periodic performance and job appraisal, the Group provides
remuneration adjustment and job promotion. The Group
strictly complied with the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#E AR HME T EREE) and the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (F#E AR
ME % EE), and made timely contribution to “five social
insurance and one housing fund (ABE—=%)" (being five
social insurance, including endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and
employment injury insurance, and housing provident fund),
mandatory provident fund and labour insurance. Apart from
basic statutory holidays, wedding and funeral leave, maternity
leave, work-related injury leave, annual leave and family
planning leave, the Group also offers additional staff benefits,
including working luncheon and transportation allowances.
These benefits boost employees’ sense of belonging to the
Company, create a good working atmosphere and enhance
enterprise cohesion.
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Equal Opportunity and Diversity

As a diversified enterprise, the Group strives to create
a diversified and harmonious working environment for
employees and protect them from discrimination and
harassment. The Group formulated employment policies
in strict accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZ AR HFEI% &%) and the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (FRZ A
EHMEEEEFEE) and provides equal opportunities in
respect of recruitment, training, promotion, job transfer,
remuneration, benefits, and termination of contracts. These
equal employment opportunities are not affected by age,
gender, physical conditions, marital status, family status, race,
colour, nationality, religion, political connection or sexual
orientation. The Group requires employees to abide by anti-
discrimination practices as set out in the Employee Code of
Conduct.

The Group also values female employees’ career development
and ensures that they have equal promotion opportunities
as male employees. The Group also complies with the
requirements under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Women's Rights and Interests (FHEE A
EHAERBLERREL) . Female employees’ employment
contracts will not be released or terminated during their
pregnancy, maternity leave and breastfeeding period and they
are entitled to basic salaries.

Health and Safety

Based on the business nature of the Group, employees mainly
work at office and their possibility of sustaining work injuries
is limited. During the Reporting Period, no serious work injury
incident occurred within the Group. For laws and regulations
in Mainland China in relation to the occupational health
standards and safe production, there was no violation of the
laws and regulations regarding the provision of safe working
environment by the Group during the Reporting Period. The
Group has always maintained work-related injury insurance
for all employees in accordance with the Social Insurance Law
of the People’s Republic of China (F#E AR £ MBIt Z R
%) .

In addition, the Group has implemented a series of policies
to foster and maintain a favourable, comfortable and healthy
working environment:

o to maintain obstruction-free emergency exits at
workplace;

o to provide a workplace with adequate illumination and
moderate temperature;

o to prohibit smoking at workplace; and

o to conduct safety inspections and fire prevention
training regularly.
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Development and Training

The Group has provided comprehensive trainings to
employees, including face-to-face trainings, sharing among
departments, online learning and internal and external
trainings according to the Group's Staff Handbook and
other related internal policies. The Group has provided
employees with diversified on-the-job training. Orientation
trainings were offered to new employees in respect to
skills and knowledge trainings and attitude building. Skills
and knowledge trainings and attitude building allow new
employees to be familiar with the corporate culture and the
background of the Company. According to job duties and
company development, the Group provides employees with
skills and trainings. Continuous assessments are conducted to
keep track on the performance of employees.

Trainings covered a variety of topics in order to cater the
needs for employees from different departments, for instance,
management skills and trainings related to medical devices.
The Group believes development of employees are crucial to
sustainable corporate development. The Group will enhance
the training system in order to promote personal development
of employees.

B3.
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Percentage of

employees Average Training

trained training hour Hours

Employees training BT ZHETLER  FI9FIIRE o[ 1534
Senior management BHREEEAER 36% 230.7 2,538
Administrative staff THAE 60% 1 5
Other staff Hith A8 45% 9.3 2,101

Percentage of

employees Average Training

trained training hour Hours

Employees training BT ZAMBEITLEF  FI9EIEE k|| LE
Male employees BEMREE 22% 34.2 1,846
Female employees ZHEE 78% 14.9 2,782
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations in
the PRC. The Group tolerates no child labour or forced and
compulsory labour, allows no employment of child labour
or forced and compulsory labour which are prohibited by
international standards and relevant regulations in the PRC.
Before employment, new employees shall show their ID cards
to avoid child labour. During the Reporting Periods, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance regarding child labour,
forced or compulsory labour in its operation.

Protection of the Interests of Employees

The Group is committed to protecting human rights, and has
established a respectful, honest and fair working environment
for employees and customers and complied all relevant laws
and regulations. Laws and regulations relating to employment
and labour which would have significant impacts on the
Group include the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China (R 2E AR H£HMEZ5E1’%) and the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FZE AR XEMNEESHEE
7E) . There was no significant violation by the Group during
the Reporting Period.

Operational Practices

The Group believes that the best operational practices are
keys to the realisation of sustainable development and
long— term corporate growth. Our qualities of integrity,
honesty and fairness have also been reflected in the Code of
Business Conduct, Employee Code of Conduct, supply chain
management, environmental protection practices and product
assurance.
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B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that establishing sustainable supply
chain and facilitating interaction and communication with
suppliers and banks could improve confidence of customers
and other stakeholders on the Group. Therefore, the
Group only maintains long-term cooperative relationships
with printing, logistics and medical device suppliers and
banks with good creditworthiness, sound goodwill, quality
products and services, good track record and eligibility.
Focusing on establishing close cooperation relationships
with suppliers, the Group has been working together with
them to reduce impacts on the environment from production
processes while ensuring the quality of service to customers.
Although most of the device suppliers are designated by
customers, the Group has formulated written policies and
guidance to monitor suppliers’ performance regularly in
order to control service quality more effectively. The Group
will cease cooperation with suppliers which fail to meet its
requirements. During the Reporting Period, there was no
supplier which failed to meet such requirements.

Product Responsibility

Providing efficient and high-quality services to customers
have always been the utmost concern for the Group. The
Group’s objective is that customers have confidence in our
services and they are provided with sufficient information
to make informed choices. To improve service quality of the
Group, the Company conducts site visits and regular visits
in order to have in-depth understanding on actual demands
and development targets of customers. By establishing long-
term and good cooperation with customers, the Company
has efficiently supported the economic development in the
regions of operation and indirectly facilitated employment
in those regions. Meanwhile, the Group has proactively
acquired customer feedbacks, including feedbacks from site
visits and feedbacks by phone. Therefore, the Group has a
set of policies and procedures in place to monitor and control
quality, so as to ensure customers’ opinions are efficiently
collected and handled.
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Quality Management

The Group has established the “Quality Management Policy”
with aims to add value for customers through business
processes that support the services offered. To enhance
service quality, the Group collects customers’ feedback on
services provided and designated staff would report the
same to the management. The Group has also issued the
Staff Operational Manual and organised training sessions
to familiarise employees with the standard operational
procedures. The Group is committed to providing quality
services to customers through enhancing the senior
management’s administrative ability and the strength of
operation employees.

Protection of Customer Data and Privacy

The Group handles significant amount of personal data
and credit information of customers. The Group upholds a
belief that information security and privacy are key principles
for operation. The Group’s employees are required to sign
a confidentiality agreement acknowledging receipt and
agreement of their responsibility and obligation regarding the
protection and non-disclosure of customer data. In addition,
information can only be used in authorised business activities.
Employees disclosing such information to other parties
is considered as data theft. Related employees shall bear
corresponding responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, there were no noted case of
violation of relevant laws or regulations regarding product
responsibility.
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B7.

Anti-corruption

The Company is committed to upholding ethics and integrity
during the operation process. No form of corruption or
bribery is tolerated. Sound judgements for transactions with
customers, suppliers, contractors, job seekers, colleagues
or any other third party should be ensured. All applicable
laws and regulations shall be duly complied with so as to
always maintain the highest standard of integrity. During the
Reporting Period, the Company rigidly abided by the Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hzE A B HMBE & EEEE) and other laws and regulations
in respect of anti-corruption, bribery, fraud and money
laundering. Reference to the aforesaid laws and regulations,
the Company has developed the “Anti-Money Laundering
Policy”, which provided that staff of the business department
shall learn potential customers’ background completely
through consulting documentation and communicating with
customers according to relevant internal guidance before
commencing business dealings with them. The Company's
risk management department also collects information of
current customers in respect of uses of proceeds, sources
of repayment funding and operational conditions. The
risk management department also acquires their latest
information from time to time and report to the senior
management once abnormal situation is identified.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Group's relevant policies,
employees may question suspected misconduct or misconduct
orally or in writing. The Group will make every effort to
treat all reports in a strictly confidential way. The identity of
the reporting and complaining employee is not allowed to
be disclosed without his/her consent, unless the Group is
legally obliged to disclose the employee’s identity and other
information. In case of suspected corruption or other criminal
offences, the Group will report to the applicable departments.

The Group has always strictly complied with relevant laws
and regulations. During the Reporting Period, no corruption
behaviour nor litigation by the Group or employees of the
Group has been noticed.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

B7.

R&S
ARBRNEEBBREPRFTERR
WE BAIBRIDEAELANE THHE
B EMEFREZR HERN KEH
KBE B A E M5 MY
RZREREHHE  BEETRA
BRANZRZER BREFRSHH
ERE-RATNRKREHANBEBET
(PEARHAMEBERGEE) DUREM
FRRE BB R PFTHRA
BERZR - XRTRAERE LHUE
BEERHBERABER)  REFE
HBHETHEREBEEPRAREBER
Al RIRBAEBASIESI ERERX
BEEPEBZEERAEFTR AR
ANEAREERFISEERRIIRE
ERMBAEFNMAEMERGLZ EM
B RBRREERREFEN A K
EMERMERN —BEFREERFR
THIRSHREEAERR

REAEEEBBRORE  EBEH
FEELUOENEALAEIHRNTE
TRAATETRIEHER -AEEK
BENUBRFERROHSDAHFAER
T BEMKRFVEENSMHREZ
BREREINSRE BRIFAEEABZE
REBRERENSNHMAMEN -
ESHRESHEMMELENEBER
T AEEEHBEAMPIHERIRS

AEB-BERKRETHBAERER
BRERR REFEAEEALSEE R
BREEMESBRITAUFRERF-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNITY

BS.

Community Investment

The Group deeply realised the importance of returning to the
society and spared no effort in providing help to community.
The Group strongly encouraged its staff to participate in
community activities and contribute to the sustainable
development of the harmonious society. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to focus on community care and staff
development with an aim to improve the society through
participation in the community. The Group actively undertakes
social responsibility and devotes itself to various social welfare
activities > making unremitting exploration and efforts to
achieve the promotion of harmonious social progress and the
win-win development.
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INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

(IRIE-HLEREBKRSIHEINER

GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE 5]
Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEHR NE BIEERS|
A. Environmental
A. IBiE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: HHY
General Disclosure Information on: 58
— AR R BERERRRAERBHB PR THNE S - BEERBZEEYN

ELEEN:

(a) the policies; and

(a) HHE; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARATZENBERDERRRACOINER -

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data 58
A1.1 BER BB R AR BEE &
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 59
A1.2 BERBEBNERTBE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity N/A
A1.3 FMELEEEEEMRERTE ERA
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 60
A1.4 FFEXBREBREYRERTE
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved N/A
A1.5 B RBER E NI R PRIS AR EA
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, N/A

reduction initiatives and results achieved
A1.6 HEIEEERBEEEREN A X BEELEENEHRAEMRE NiE A
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Subject Areas Content Page Index

FEHE AE BEE%ES5|

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 . B ZEH

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 61
other raw materials

— AR iR EE BEREAER (BT K EMERERME) BEER

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas 62
or oil) in total and intensity

A2.1 BBV ONERK,/SEEER WME - RIUH) REERTE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 62

A2.2 MEKEREE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved N/A

A2.3 s RE R MM st E RIS R ~ER

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit N/A
for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved

A2.4 AR EGE AR E I BERMRE > URIRA B KW@ sTE RS ER
e

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference N/A
to per unit produced

A2.5 B mTEEEMENEERSEESB LS ~ER

Aspect A3: Environment and Natural Resources

IBEA3 X IRIEREXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the 63
environment and natural resources

— AR B BEBITABRERRABERERNEATENBER

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 63
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEHE AE BEE%ES5|
B. Social
B. #&
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: Bl
General Disclosure Information on: 64
— AR B BR#FHMREE - BERSH TFEFY - RA - TEHE 2

[ 48 LUR LAt 5 8 s B A B9 -

(a) the policies; and

() HBHR; XK

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEATENHBEZRERROINER

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 64

geographical region
B1.1 IR EBREEAR  FREMN R RS D ESBH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region 65
B1.2 MR FR AN R ER DR EE MK LR
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEHR NE BEERS|
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: BFLHZE
General Disclosure Information on: 67
— AR B ERREZ2TIHRRERREEERCHELTCSH !

(a) the policies; and

(a) HMHE; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARTENEREZERRANER

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.
B2.1 Number and rate of work related fatalities N/A
B2.1 AT ERAFRMIETAIAB KR EA
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury N/A
B2.2 HAITHBELRITFEEH ER
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 67

they are implemented and monitored
B2.3 HMPTER M B R L 25 UREAITRER S E
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEHE AE BEE%ES5|

Aspect B3: Development and Training
B EB3 . #RRIEZ

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 68
duties at work and description of training activities

— AR iR EE BRRAEEEBITIERENA # R ENBER REMEIES

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by employee category (e.g. 68
senior management, middle management)

B3.1 ZEEBHEN NEREEE -FREEES 2I0NTIEEE DL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 68

employee category

B3.2 B REEEMNE D BREETMRI TR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEEB4 @ &TEE
General Disclosure Information on: 69

— AR ER BRAIEE TSR 6% T :

(a) the policies; and

() MK ; &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

(b) BTFHETABEAZENMERZIRNRANER

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 69
and forced labour

B4.1 i m st B E A E LU o B T 8% T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 69

B4.2 T S BE R B R R H IR A RIS T Pr R EX RS & BR
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEHE AE BEE%ES5|
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/EEB5 & R/EHEETE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 70
chain
— ARk EE EEMEENIRIE RS RAREBER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region N/A
B5.1 wrMEd o HERHE NER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 70
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored
B5.2 HAERERHEENES mERTERAENNHERHE UKk
BRIBOINAITREGEEHE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EBEB6 X EmEF
General Disclosure Information on:
—ARiREE BRFRHERNBRFENEREZ2 - BES - RERMBESTEUARAE 70
W EN
(a) the policies; and
(@ BXR; K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
(b) TTFHETABEATENHEBEZRERRAINER
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how N/A
they are dealt with
B6.2 BRBNERRRBNIGHFEE U R EH % FEA
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting N/A
intellectual property rights
B6.3 R B e R (RIEE S E B RARYIE 6 EA
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how 71
they are implemented and monitored
B6.5 HHCHBE B RERMBER > UREBRNITRERG A
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEHR AE BEE%ES5|
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: REF
General Disclosure Information on: 72
— ARk EE BRI IEERES - $1R  IEF ROt B 82AY ¢
(a) the policies; and
() HBHR; XK
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
(b) BFHETABEARTENEREZERRANER
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought N/A
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases
B7.1 RREANEETANEEERETYEEENESHARZHNHE ~ER
VeEiEN
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, 72
how they are implemented and monitored
B7.2 AR BB HE i B R R AR T U R IT R &R 5%
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : HERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 73
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests
— AR B BERMHE2ERBREEMTHERENRREERITEZR
& AR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 73
B8.1 FXEEERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas 73
B8.2 TEEILBABAER
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group is principally engaged in provision of
medical equipment finance leasing services, maternal and child
postpartum care industry services, trading of medical equipments
and consumables business in the PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the financial position of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
105 to 107 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the year and the
discussion on the Group's future business development are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, and the description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and key financial performance
indicators are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred during the year up to the date of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of these related party
transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions, which are required to comply with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2021,
distribution to owners comprising share premium account and

the Company's reserves available for

accumulated losses, amounted to approximately RMB56.0 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue attributable
to the Group's largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 0.3% and 1.1% of the Group’s total
revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sales
attributable to the Group's largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 7.1% and 18.7% of the
Group's total cost of sales, respectively.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in
GEM Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Yong (redesignated on 13 May 2021)
Mr. Zhang Junwei (resigned on 13 May 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lyu

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan

Mr. Chow

Dr. Deng (appointed on 31 December 2021)

Mr. Lin Weibin (appointed on 13 May 2021 and
resigned on 31 December 2021)

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, at
each annual general meeting, one third of the Director for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All
Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on
pages 21 to 23 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhang, being the executive Director, has entered into a new
service agreement with the Company with effect from 12 June
2021. The service contract is for an initial term of three years and
shall continue thereafter unless and until it is terminated by our
Company or our Director giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior notice in writing. In addition, Mr. Zhang has also
entered into a service contract with a PRC subsidiary. The service
agreement can be terminated by either party by giving the other
party one month’s written notice in advance or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the service contract.

Mr. Zhang Yong, being the executive Director, has entered into
a new service agreement with the Company with effect from 1
November 2021 for a terms of three years. The service agreement
can be terminated by either party by giving the other party three
months’ written notice in advance or otherwise in accordance with
the terms of the service agreement.

Mr. Lyu, being the non-executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company with effect from 15 August
2019 for a terms of three years. The service agreement can be
terminated by either party by giving the other party three months’
written notice in advance or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service agreement.
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Each of Mr. Chan and Mr. Chow, being all our Independent Non-
executive Directors, has entered into a new letter of appointment
with our Company on 12 June 2021. Each letter of appointment
is for an initial term of three years and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated by either party giving at least three month's
notice in writing.

Dr. Deng, being the Independent Non-executive Directors, has
entered into a letter of appointment with our Company on 31
December 2021. The letter of appointment is for an initial term
of three years and continue thereafter unless terminated by either
party giving at least three month'’s notice in writing.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively. There has been
no arrangement under which any Director has waived or agreed to
waive any emolument.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest whether directly
or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
in Shares and underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are taken or
(b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or

therein; or (c) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,

were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest

T 5 BB
BERTETHABRS AT R A
AR BB R A M 3 Rk

B2 —HF+A=+—H ARBE=S
REZBITHRABRIAB REEMEREE
(E&ERBHFRBAERGFEXVELD BIRHD
RN REEETES [(A)RBEIZFK
HERBIEXVBETRFSDEANGER
B AP (SRR ERBE S A EIRA

ZRERIREFRRAHEA B KK
B) 5 HbRERE S KR E R 35218 A5
ﬁﬁ’~\¢1l PRt &5 5 B(ORBGEM LR
AI555.46F5.671R AN & AR B K B3P BY
BmBokBamT

KRB EIIFE

Number of
Shares held/
interested in

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

B8/ HEks R R4
EEN4 B/ EEHE & E Bt
Mr. Zhang" @ Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 300,000,000 75%
jointly with another person
REENO REFEERED B A ATHREFEN#ER
Mr. Zhang Junwei®® Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 300,000,000 75%

jointly with another person
RERELOO
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Notes:

On 24 February 2017, the ultimate controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang Junwei entered into
a concert parties confirmatory deed to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they are parties acting in concert with each
member of the Group from the incorporation dates of the respective
members of the Group and continue as at and after the date of the
concert parties confirmatory deed, details of which are set out in the
subsection headed "History and Reorganisation—Parties Acting in
Concert” in the Prospectus. As such, pursuant to the parties acting
in concert arrangement, each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Hero Global Limited ("Hero Global") (being wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang), Mr. Zhang, Icon Global Holding Limited (“lcon
Global”) (being wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Junwei) and Mr. Zhang
Junwei, is deemed to be interested in 75.0% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

300,000,000 Shares in which Mr. Zhang is interested consist of the
following: (i) 219,801,980 Shares held by Hero Global, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Zhang, in which Mr. Zhang is deemed to be
interested under the SFO; and (ii) 80,198,020 Shares in which Mr.
Zhang is deemed to be interested as a result of being a party acting-
in-concert with Mr. Zhang Junwei.

300,000,000 Shares in which Mr. Zhang Junwei is interested consist
of (i) 80,198,020 Shares held by Icon Global, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Junwei, in which Mr. Zhang Junwei is deemed to
be interested under the SFO; and (ii) 219,801,980 Shares in which Mr.
Zhang Junwei is deemed to be interested as a result of being a party
acting-in-concert with Mr. Zhang.
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NABZ LR E > BIHero Global Limited
("Hero Global") (HRAEEZ2EHER) 5K
HEEHRKERBRAR (MEHZ2EK))
(BRERLELZERR) RRERLE
WRANARTTS.0%BETRAES

3¢
mm

SRS 4E A AY300,000,00082 B 19 €115
LI TF&IE (()HHero Global CE.4 2B
BRAE) FER219,801,9808% 8817 » 1RIE
HEMBERA REEWRANZER
DHEAER ; RINVREERNEHERER
SE—RITHMATTIRBEAEEREN
80,198,0208% B2 15 ©

RIEBILEHEBREZM300,000,0008% 815
BIENHEH2K CRERLEEZ2EHEEN
AF)) FHERI80,198,0208 Be 15 0 iR E
R E®EG REBREERRANRZER
PEERLD  R()RERLERB AR
HE—BRITHMWATMERAESERN
219,801,980/ & 17 ©
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Long position in the associated corporations

Name of associated

I E BRI E
Number and
class of Percentage

Name of Director corporations Capacity/ nature of interest securities of Shareholding
Eickzd 4=

By HREOEE 8 Sip/ #EHE gl REB DL

Mr. Zhang Hero Global Beneficial owner 50,000 100%
ordinary shares

REE Hero Global BmEBA 50,0008 & i % 100%

Mr. Zhang Junwei Icon Global Beneficial owner 100 100%
ordinary shares

RERRE BHZ2IK BB A 1008 EER 100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in any shares or underlying shares and/or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2021, the
persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register of the
Company were as follows:
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BEEMANC R_ZE-_—F+"B=+—
H REARBRORAEBRO PES EDZ
(EERBHERPEMHROIEXVE) > MRE
B MAERPIEXVEFE2 KR E30 BB IF
XAT IR BEHREE T RMERPIF3360%
RAARBENAABDNECHZAL (AT
BEENESTHASRI OTF :

Long positions in the Shares HREIIFE
Number of Approximate
Shares held/ percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest interested in shareholding
BE/BEEE RRAERE4
[EE LY g3/ #zElE NkRHEHE BAL
Hero Global® Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 300,000,000 75%
another person
Hero Global” BEalEB AN B - AT HRAFENER
Icon Global® Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 300,000,000 75%
another person
EH IR BRBEAAN BE— S AT HRFENER
Ms. Tang Yiping? Interest of spouse 300,000,000 75%
ekt FofdtEm
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Notes:

Save
were
chief

On 24 February 2017, the ultimate controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang Junwei entered into
a concert parties confirmatory deed to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they are parties acting in concert with each
member of the Group from the incorporation dates of the respective
members of the Group and continue as at and after the date of the
concert parties confirmatory deed, details of which are set out in
the subsection headed “History and Reorganisation-Parties Acting in
Concert” in the Prospectus. As such, pursuant to the parties acting
in concert arrangement, each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Hero Global (being wholly owned by Mr. Zhang),
Mr. Zhang, Icon Global (being wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Junwei)
and Mr. Zhang Junwei, is deemed to be interested in 75.0% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Ms. Tang Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, and she is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Zhang is interested
in for the purposes of the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or
executive of the Company as disclosed in the section headed

“Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in

Share
and i
have
or de

s and underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
ts associated corporations” above) who had or deemed to
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
bentures of the Company which has to be disclosed to the

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPETING INTEREST

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is interested
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or has any
conflicts of interest with the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Zhang Junwei, and their respective holding companies, namely
Hero Global and Icon Global (the “Controlling Shareholders”)
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2018
("Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company (for
itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries). For details of
the Deed of Non-competition, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders—Non-competition
Undertaking” in the Prospectus. Each of the Controlling
Shareholders has confirmed that none of them is engaged in, or
interested in any business (other than the Group) which, directly
or indirectly, competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by each of
the Controlling Shareholders during the year and up to the date of
this report.
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company considers the maintenance of a high standard of
corporate governance important to the continuous growth of the
Group. The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code"”) as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. As the Shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 9 July 2018, other than the deviation from code provision
A.2.1, the Company has since then adopted and complied with,
where applicable, the CG Code to ensure that the Group’s business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

During the year and up to the date of this report, other than the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 explained on pages 27 and
32 of this report respectively, the Company complied with the
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are not aware of any significant event
which had material effect on the Group subsequent to 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

Dividend Policy

The Company has no fixed dividend policy. A decision to distribute
any interim dividend or recommend any final dividend would
require the approval of the Board and will be at its discretion. In
addition, any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
Shareholders” approval. A decision to declare or pay any dividend in
the future and the amount of any dividends depends on a number
of factors, including but not limited to our results of operations,
financial condition, working capital, capital requirements and
other factors our Board may deem relevant. There is no assurance
that dividends of such amount or any amount will be declared or

distributed each year or in any year.

In addition, as our Company is a holding company registered in
the Cayman Islands and our operations are conducted through our
subsidiaries in the PRC, the availability of funds to pay distributions
to Shareholders depends on dividends received from these
subsidiaries.

During the board meeting held on 31 March 2022, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents
per share, in form of a cash dividend, to the Shareholders. The
proposed final dividend for 2021 is expected to be paid to the
shareholders on or before 7 July 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Friday, 27 May 2022 (the "2022 AGM"), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24 May 2022 to
Friday, 27 May 2022, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be effected. Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Friday, 27 May 2022 will be
entitled to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 6 June 2022 to Tuesday, 7 June 2022, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. The record
date for determination of entitlement to the final dividend shall be
Tuesday, 7 June 2022. Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 7 June 2022 will
be entitled to the final dividend. To qualify for the final dividend,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 June
2022.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the
amount of public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Group the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in writing an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

RANBFRE
RARE QM BRESATAWTFZER
R BB EERDA AR MEFGEM L

TRABEBTREZ ARFTRE -

BREEE
BEZZEGEHEAEREEEERLER
Rz g5t RAIKRE R I 57 o T %~ B
EERMBREFE BRBERAG&E_T
T H+ZR=t+—RLEEEZEERR
EMBRE -BLEZEGEREEERIINE
ZBMEBERAEBRRMZ G5t R REBER
URAEEZEEZGEMBHREK

BIFERTEFTZHILM

RIBGEM LT RASES.091% > AABEBS
BIUFATESREAFEEBLIMEZERE
FERS ARERRERBIUIFNTES
HEBIL -

ZanEREEARAE FEHSE 2021

95



926

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERT

AUDITOR

On 3 December 2020, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants resigned and BDO Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Group. Details of the change of auditor were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 3 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Group during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021 have been audited by BDO Limited,
Certified Public Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited
Zhang Junshen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

1% EX Eif

R_E_EF+_A=H EEHeHEMA
BT AEREBILGEERGHMER
FIERABIEZEANEBIZEAN - it
B ZHBHINR AR BRAZZSZZ
F+ZB=HZRERe

BREXIREEN AEEZBMNBE=F
BEEAEMEH -
BE_T_ZTER-_ZF-—F+ZA

S+—HLEFEZREYBRECHZEM
EEMEBUCGEREAMEBMERA
BEZ HREGREIULTEEREENS
F-ENMEABTRBUCGEREANETME
@@T%K@Tﬁﬁ%zmﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ
KRERBFRGLRE

AEEGm
EXTEREERRAR
TEFTHAES
RIE R

BB T "F=ZA=+—H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

E5E ¢ +852 2218 8288
{2H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (together the "Group") set out on pages 105 to 239,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021,
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then

and of its consolidated financial

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

ERVR 3 e

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
EETHEER1115R
k2548

HEATEREEERABRRE
(FHREREEMMIINERAR)

%ﬁﬁ
LB EXEI105E 2395 Rl
%IE@@TUE“TD&HWEQT@MQ
BEEH) eV BRER BRAMBRSE
B8iEF BEERZE”_—F+*HE=+—H
NGaHBERRR UREBEEZHIEFEN
FeEnkHEME2ERER REREREH
R mERUREE M BRERNF

e L=
(BREERGSTHRBE) -

%%ﬂ, RERAMBREAERESTES
g ((ERAEMAT)) BHHN(ES
%$$¢$W>E mAst kR B£E
RIEZ-—F+"A=+—HHNGEEYH
RARBEEZALELFENREYHBRRER
REEME LEBREB(AFFL) K
BEREDERR -

EnniZEREBRERAR FERSE 2021

91



98

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZHBE RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment of finance lease receivables

Refer to Note 19 and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgements in relation to impairment of finance lease receivables
set out in Note 4 and Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements

We identified the impairment of finance lease receivables as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements, and the use of judgement by the management in
measuring the expected credit losses (“ECL") for finance lease
receivables which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9.

As set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of finance lease
receivables is RMB266,404,000 after deducting a lifetime ECL
allowance of RMB21,193,000, representing 50% of the Group’s
total assets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of finance lease receivables (continued)

As set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
management measures ECL for finance lease receivables by using
a provision matrix. In determining the impairment of finance lease
receivables, the management considers (i) internal credit rating
which reflect shared credit risk characteristics for different industry
types, historical past due information and lessees’ creditworthiness
for different groupings of finance lease receivables; (ii) associations
between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, (iii)
forward-looking information without undue cost or effort including
macroeconomic scenarios; and (iv) amount and timing of future
cash flows as parameters of the ECL models, and fair value of the
pledged underlying assets. In addition, finance lease receivables
which are credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually
based on expectation of cash flows that takes into account the
fair value of the pledged underlying assets based on available
market information and credit risk characteristics of the particular
individual lessees.

Our response
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

- Understanding and assessing the appropriateness of
management’s methodology for identifying the grouping of
finance lease receivables on the basis of internal credit rating
which reflect shared credit risk characteristics;

- Assessing the reasonableness of ECL model, model
assumptions (such as the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows), economic inputs and forward-
looking macroeconomic scenarios for ECL measurement;

- Testing the integrity of a sample of data used to measure ECL;

- On a sample basis, checking the accuracy of internal credit
rating which reflect shared credit risk characteristics for
different industry types, historical past due information and
lessees’ creditworthiness for different groupings of finance
lease receivables;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZHBE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Our response (continued)

- For the credit-impaired finance lease receivables, on a sample
basis, assessing for reasonableness the Group’s assumptions
on the expected future cash flows and testing the value
of the pledged underlying assets against available market
information;

- Testing a selection of subsequent settlements of credit-
impaired finance leases, by inspecting supporting documents
for cash receipts from lessees subsequent to the end of the
reporting period; and

- Assessing the financial statement disclosures relating to the
Group’s credit risk management and impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mMHEMETNER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-F -+ =+ —HIEE
2021 2020
—EZ—F -
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
f 5 AREFT AREFIT
Revenue Ui &=
Finance leasing income MEHEEWA 50,575 54,584
Interest income from loan FEWERF E WA
receivables 662 1,738
Income from postpartum care B FIRFBWA
services 51,447 2,190
Income from trading of medical BRammREM B Z WA
equipment and consumables 16,758 -
Total revenue Fallogy 5 119,442 58,512
Cost of sales THE K (16,348) -
Bank interest income IRITH EWA 212 46
Other gains and losses H i & K B5 18 7 4,750 4,467
Staff costs BTITmAE 10 (34,664) (14,636)
Impairment losses under expected  TEHA{S FI1E4< (FEHAE AE%k))
credit loss (“ECL") model, BB 2 RERE
net of reversal (#0 B [3]) 9 (4,800) (3,500)
Other operating expenses H& e (54,430) (21,438)
Finance costs RRE Al A 8 (7,996) (8,296)
Profit before income tax FRPTIS IR AL A 10 6,166 15,155
Income tax credit/(expenses) R8st A B 12 277 (2,270)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRANREmEmB AL
income for the year 6,443 12,885
Profit and total comprehensive FREM K2 A BEEES
income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB AN 5,488 12,981
Non-controlling interests JEERE R 955 (96)
6,443 12,885
Earnings per share for profit KABHEBANEREEEREF
attributable to owners of
the Company during the year
—Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HEAR#E (ARED) 14 1.37 3.25
snTEREMERAT £E®E2021 105
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MEMBARRR

As at 31 December 2021
KIE_—F+_F=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f —EoEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
I AREFT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BRERZE 15 12,545 14,567
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 11,760 10,295
Intangible assets ELEE 17 30,145 9,232
Finance lease receivables MEHEEWRIE 19 59,501 84,380
Loan receivables FEUE =R 19 169 864
Prepayments for acquisition of W HEMI B A B TR(T 1B
subsidiaries - 7,200
Deferred tax assets PR IEE EE 18 5,438 5,070
Deposits B& 21 6,121 1,017
125,679 132,625
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories 58 884 -
Finance lease receivables BB R B E U IE 19 206,903 207,488
Loan receivables FEWE =R 19 823 6,935
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 20 501 -
Prepayments, deposits and BB 5 R HM W R IE
other receivables 21 23,122 7,749
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEFAERD (BAT
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") BEAER) 2sREE 22 35,322 -
Restricted bank deposits B REIRITER 23 106,023 -
Bank balances and cash RIS AIRE 23 33,492 84,814
407,070 306,986
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAaE
Other payables and accrued charges E fth f& {3 7018 K FE =+ & 24 18,984 12,076
Provision for taxation EIRIE 1,896 6,018
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 6,201 3,491
Deposits from finance lease HMERERFZE
customers 19 147 5,422
Deferred income IRFE A 26 16 399
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 27 117,496 99,730
144,740 127,136
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE EFRE 262,330 179,850
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERRSERE
LIABILITIES 388,009 312,475
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BT R

As at 31 December 2021
R_E_—F+_F=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T AE¥T T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities IR IEE (& 18 3,038 1,146
Lease liabilities HEasE 25 6,940 7,729
Deposits from finance lease MERERRAES
customers 19 - 257
Deferred income IR IE YA 26 - 31
Bank and other borrowings IR1T R E MG 27 73,709 -
83,687 9,163
NET ASSETS BEERE 304,322 303,312
EQUITY #m
Share capital [N 28 33,839 33,839
Reserves ®E 29 265,684 268,529
Equity attributable to owners of RABER AR
the Company 299,523 302,368
Non-controlling interests FEIERE T 4,799 944
TOTAL EQUITY WER4E%A 304,322 303,312

Mr. Zhang Junshen

RIERTE

Director

EF

Mr. Zhang Yong
RERE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
NG PN FFER R by
Capital
Share Share  and other  Statutory  Retained
capital premium reserves reserves profits Total
-2
k& ROEE  HthEE  OAERE  REER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFRT AREFn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:H
(Note i) (Note ii)
(GiE2)) (R zEii)
Balance as at 1 January 2020 RZEZZE-F—H 33,839 84,435 133,023 7,590 41,384 300,271 - 300,271
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EREFIRZERALE
income for the year - - - - 12,981 12,981 (96) 12,885
Dividend paid (Note 13) PIRRE (FizH13) - (10,884) - - - (10,884) - (10,884)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—-RINEAE (1332)
(Note 32) - - - - - - 1,040 1,040
Transfer to PRC statutory reserves & ZHhEIATE ke (P zHiil)
(Note iii) - - - 1,227 (1,227) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 RZZZFE
and 1 January 2021 +ZA=1+-8k
e 33,839 73,551 133,023 8,817 53,138 302,368 944 303,312
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EREFI X2 ERALE
income for the year - - - - 5,488 5,488 955 6,443
Dividend paid (Note 13) DREE (HzE13) - (8,333) - - - (8,333) (633) (8,966)
Acquisition of subsidiaries IReERI B AR (3E32)
(Note 32) - - - - - - 3,533 3,533
Transfer to PRC statutory reserves B8 E B EREGE (5
(Note iii) - - - 594 (594) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZZ2Z-E+ZF=1+—H 33,839 65,218 133,023 9,411 58,032 299,523 4,799 304,322
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes::

(i)

(iii)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, share
premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of share premium if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital account.

Capital and other reserves represents (i) the reserve arising from
the acquisition of 55% equity interest of Ziyuanyuan (Shenzhen)
International Finance Leasing Company Limited (“ZYY Finance
Leasing”), a subsidiary of the Company, through acquisition of HK
Lixin Trade Co., Limited ("HK Lixin"); (ii) the difference between the
aggregate of the issued capital of HK Lixin and ZYY Finance Leasing
directly attributable to Mr. Zhang Junshen and Mr. Zhang Junwei, the
controlling individual shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Individual Shareholders”) and the net assets value of HK Lixin
upon insertion of the Company and Honor Global Holding Limited
as part of the group reorganisation; (iii) the consideration paid on
the acquisition of the remaining 45% equity interest of ZYY Finance
Leasing by HK Lixin from the Controlling Individual Shareholders;
and (iv) Hero Global Limited (“Hero Global”),
holding company of the Company, waived an amount due from HK

an immediate

Lixin, a subsidiary of the Company, amounting to RMB68,000,000,
which was accounted for as a deemed capital contribution from a
shareholder.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the subsidiaries established
“PRC"),
appropriate 10% or an amount to be determined by its directors

in the People’s Republic of China (the it is required to
of its profit after taxation in accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations before any distribution of dividends to owners each
year to the statutory reserve until the balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital.

MI5E

(i)

(iii)

BAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

REMEFERENE (EE J)’HQ%%T%E%
ANkaRE ERRERABATITUE
HDIKKRE  WEBAEUTER T FAERR
D ERETOE (VD RRER  ABE
EEEBEIRNGES  WINEBEENTER
BERERLENCEERMBEFTRERR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

\\7I' == iﬁ$ /)ILE‘IEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—EZ—F B_BF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARETT AR®ETT
Cash flows from operating REEEFIBRERE
activities
Profit before income tax FRPTIS AT R A 6,166 15,155
Adjustments for: FEE .
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fERAEEEITE 16 11,900 4,110
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥R &R EITE
equipment 15 5,416 1,531
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-1918 R & Z 7 - (726)
Amortisation of intangible asset m B EEHE 17 1,020 85
Property, plant and equipment YR
written off 15 - 1
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERRENT
plant and equipment 10 (25) -
Finance costs EE=Y N 8 7,996 8,296
Impairment losses on finance FEAE RSB RERBE
lease receivables 9 4,862 3,567
Impairment losses on loan = E PR I=Y SFi=E:{E]
receivables reversed 9 (62) (67)
Bank interest income RITH B UA (212) (46)
Fair value gain on financial assets A EETAERZ
at FVTPL EHREENNFERD 7 (2,365) (1,994)
Operating profit before working S EEFICE G
capital change 34,696 29,912
Increase in inventories FEEm (884) -
Decrease in finance lease receivables Bt 8 & F& Ug Z0 I8 6 L 20,603 63,709
Decrease in loan receivables FEU & =R 6,868 5,305
Increase in trade receivables B 5 eI IBE N (501)
Increase in prepayments and other — FE{S 7R I8 K B FE We =R IE1E /10
receivables (12,045) (2,856)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables EL{th & {4 1B & FE 51 & FH
and accrued charges CRZL) /10 (7.726) 4,319
Decrease in deposits from finance FIEHREZRERESK
lease customers and deferred 45 SIE LA R 2>
income (6,327) (35,635)
Cash generated from operations REPRBERE 34,684 64,754
Income taxes paid BENER (4,513) (5,976)
Net cash generated from REFHAAGRE R
operating activities 30,171 58,778
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

M‘ A EE@INLE%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E—F 2 E
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ARBETT AR®ETT
Cash flows from investing KREZHFRBERERE
activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of  WE—XKKMBAE =2
cash acquired BE&MAFEE 32 (1,194) (1,500)
Increase in restricted bank deposits 7 BR %l $R17 77 =R /0 (15,924) -
Release of restricted bank deposits A RHIRITEREMR - 61
Prepayments for acquisition of WM B AR 2 BTN
subsidiaries - (7,200)
Redemption of financial assets at ~ BEEIZAF(EETABREZ
FVTPL TREE 230,943 270,614
Proceeds from rental deposits refund 8 18 & B R Fr 18 2B - 240
Bank interest income received BUERTTH] E WA 212 46
Purchase of property, plant and BEME -KBERSZE
equipment (1,538) (8,667)
Proceeds received from disposal of HEWE -BE KRR EASHIE
property, plant and equipment 1,062 -
Purchase of intangible asset BERTEE 17 - (5,099)
Placement of financial assets GFERATEEFABERZ
at FVTPL TREE (263,900) (268,620)
Net cash used in investing KREEHFTRAREFEE
activities (50,339) (20,125)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|- | EE ﬁ il E 1%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—E—F 2 E
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ARBETT AR®ETT
Cash flows from financing MEZHFAERERE
activities 36
Bank borrowings raised SHEIBTEMR 138,600 101,080
Proceeds from sales and leaseback &% EIHEIRZRERIE
transactions 90,099 -
Proceeds paid for security deposits 1R8I =B (4,505) -
Interest portion of the lease BENHEEAEFNEMAZHY
liabilities paid (1,241) (897)
Repayment of principal portion of EEHAE&EEASIHD
the lease liabilities (11,444) (3,378)
Interest paid for bank borrowings  fRITERBI B F] B (6,374) (4,521)
Dividend paid to the Company's DIKREFTARABRE
shareholders (8,333) (10,884)
Dividend paid to non-controlling DI B T IE TR S
interests (633) -
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRTTER (137,224) (57,530)
Net cash generated from REEE RIS IR E IR
financing activities 58,945 23,870
Net increase in cash and cash HERIREEEYILMEEE
equivalents 38,777 62,523
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HNRERIREEEY
at 1 January 84,814 22,291
Cash and cash equivalents B+ZB=+—HHREX
at 31 December REEEY 123,591 84,814
Analysis of cash and cash RERREEEYMOH
equivalents
Cash and bank balances RITRFERSE 33,492 84,814
Restricted bank deposits BIRFISRITER 23 90,099 -
123,591 84,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company's
immediate and ultimate holding company is Hero Global.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The shares of the Company have been listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 9 July 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are provision of
medical equipment finance leasing services, maternal and
child postpartum care industry services and trading of medical
equipment and consumables business in the PRC. Details of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 35.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 were approved for issue by the board of directors (the
"Directors”) of the Company on 31 March 2022.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
2.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

. Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

— iR E R

R EREEERR2E (TRAF))
BHEREEEFMATNARERA
B ERMNEBBHERZBERAR
(TBt3ZFR)) GEM ETf e A A B E
KR &R N B AHero Globale &R
BIFEMM E R R EE R AL
WENRFRARNEIER —Ho

ARERMEBZE—NFELBIH
EE B S FTGEM 73 o

ARBE B —RREZERAT A RE
REWBAE (G HER) NETE
EBRETEREHESRERRSM
RBEMEEHERE SBEFEER
BREMEZER A RENEBELQE
BUEF IR BN MY EE35

BE_Z_—F+"B=+t—HLHF
EMNMBRERENR_-ZZ_Z_F=A
=+ —HERAATDEEEHERIT

RNERAMBREERN (TE

ARG EERN))

2.1 M EENEEMBRE
8]
EBEHMAGCEGETNA
8 3 31 B 5 AR R A MO R
STRAT BT B B A

e BBGFERFEIR -FAE
MBS ERF4HE - FB
MHEREEREFTR-FE
MBRESEREIRRES
MBHREERNE 165K ZME
BT R EREENE -E T

Bz
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)
2.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (continued)

The new or amended HKFRSs did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior period. The Group has
not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as

HKAS 1 Current or Non-current?
HK Interpretation 5  Presentation of Financial
(2020) Statements — Classification by

the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause®
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to

Disclosure of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates?
Amendments to Deferred tax related to assets and
HKAS 12 liabilities arising from a single

Amendments to

transaction?
Proceeds before Intended Use'

HKAS 16
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE M B IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T =+ —HIFFEEF

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWEAMBERSERN(TE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BYMBREELN) @

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but 22 EBREfFERRERZRETHLE
are not yet effective (continued) FIEEMBREEYN (&
Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual TEMBREEN  BoERZEWR

HKFRS 3 Framework? FIRHEET
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets EAMBREEN REFAEBESRFR
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its FIEKREEE AELEZBNEE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? SHEA 2857 HEFIE
5]
Amendments to Covid-19 — Related Rent EANKREED  Covid-19RRLER
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond F16RIOES] RZBZ—%/A
30 June 2021° =t+H%)S
Amendments to Annual Improvements to FAMBREEN, 2 \FEZZCE
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020" &3] R EEMBR
SRR FEAE
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! N _E__F—HB—H¥z%E
January 2022. £
2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of 2 HKWEHRAAR -_Z - _F—F8
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual —BRZEMENEEFER
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Bz B EBEHER
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 RIZZ=F—B—H&ZK
January 2023. EXeo
4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the * ZEBIERERANEERHR
sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods ERSzERENFEERBE
beginning on or after a date to be determined. ERNHEFHTE-
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April > R_Z2_—FmOBE—HxZE
2021. Exfo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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At 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation

5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause 14

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the

term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

In addition, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset
(to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with the provisions for decommissioning and
restoration and the corresponding amounts recognised
as part of the cost of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction (continued)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to RMB11,760,000 and RMB13,141,000
respectively. The Group is still in the process of
assessing the full impact of the application of the
amendments. The cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments will be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented.

Note: Depending on the applicable tax law, an entity might
alternatively conclude that the tax deductions it will
receive for lease payments relate to the right-of-use
assets, in which case temporary differences would not
arise on initial recognition of the lease liability and the
related component of the right-of-use asset’'s cost.
Accordingly, the entity would not recognise deferred
tax on initial recognition but would do so if and when
temporary differences arise after initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General
Model’, which is modified for insurance contracts with
direct participation features, described as the ‘Variable
Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if certain
criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining
coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of this standard in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework (continued)
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have
an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the financial statements in future periods should
such transaction arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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At 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19 — Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Effective 1 June 2020, HKFRS 16 was amended to
provide a practical expedient for lessees accounting
for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence
of the Covid-19 pandemic and satisfy the following
criteria:

(i)  The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

(i)  The reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(iii)  There are is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with the practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not assess
whether the rent concession meets the definition of a
lease modification. Lessees apply other requirements in
HKFRS 16 in accounting for the concession.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19 — Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (continued)

In the annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group had elected to utilise
the practical expedient for all rent concessions that
meet the criteria. Accounting for the rent concessions
as lease modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised
consideration using a revised discount rate, with the
effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical
expedient, the Group is not required to determine a
revised discount rate and the effect of the change in the
lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concession occurs.

On 9 April 2021, the HKICPA issued another
amendment to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which extended
the above practical expedient to reductions in lease
payments that were originally due on or before 30
June 2021. This amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
earlier application permitted including the financial
statements not authorised for issue at 9 April 2021.
The amendment is to be applied mandatorily by
those entities that have elected to apply the previous
amendment Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. The
Group has not early adopted the amendment Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in the
current annual financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_E_—F+ _HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19 — Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (continued)

The transition provisions of the extension to the
practical expedient require retrospective application,
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of
equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the lessee first applies the

amendment.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the amendments is unlikely to have material impact
on the consolidated financial statements, as the rent
concessions negotiated with the lessors were either not
arise as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic,
or even arise as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic, but the rent concessions does not affect
payments originally due after 30 June 2021 but before

30 June 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

o HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS
1 to measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

. HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the "10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether
to derecognise a financial liability, explaining that
only fees paid or received between the entity
and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf are
included.

. HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

(continued)

. HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have
an impact on the financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 105 to 239 have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts
on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in Note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments, which are stated at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting

policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case

the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE _F - —F+ _A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set
has the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted

from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation 3.2 X¥BEHRESEE (&)

(continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interest and non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest; and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

34

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Foreign currency

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEMNE &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment 35 ME-BERSE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Motor vehicle 5 years
The assets’ depreciation methods and estimated useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —

FrZA=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (“CGU") that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount (see Note 3.14), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit on pro-rata basis over the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value
less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately and in a
business combination

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of computer software is provided on
straight-line method over their useful lives of 5 years.
The amortisation expenses is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product for
it to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

o sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

(1) Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. These are
subsequently measured using effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(2)

Financial assets at FVTPL: These include
financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on
financial assets (including loan receivables, trade
receivables, refundable rental deposits, other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances) and finance lease receivables which are
subject to impairment under HFKRS 9. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:

(1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12-month after the reporting date; and

(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for finance lease receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. To measure the ECLs, finance
lease receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics or are assessed
individually for credit-impaired balances.

For other debt financial assets, ECLs are based
on lifetime ECLs except when there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be
based on the 12-month ECLs.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument and finance lease receivables
as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument or
finance lease receivables as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)
(iij) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
classifies credit risk on finance lease receivables
into 4 grades (low risk, fair risk, loss and write-
off) as disclosed in Note 37. The internal credit risk
ratings are based on qualitative (such as lessee’s
operating conditions, financial positions, etc.)
and quantitative factors (mainly includes past due
information of the finance lease receivables).

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
or finance lease receivables is more than 180 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(iij) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets/finance lease
receivables
A financial asset or finance lease receivables is
credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset/finance lease
receivables have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset/finance lease receivables is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial

asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset or finance
lease receivables when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
or finance lease receivables written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD") (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default
("EAD"). The assessment of the PD and LGD is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
finance lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the finance lease
receivables in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s other receivables and finance lease
receivables are each assessed as a separate
group);

. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8
(i)

(iii)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables, deposits from finance lease
customers, lease liabilities and bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised

in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Effective interest method

v)

This is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. Effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance being ECL
provision in accordance with HKFRS 9; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)

v)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises
a provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees
are determined to be higher than the carrying
amount of the guarantees. To determine ECLs,
the Group considers changes in the risk of default
of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless
the risk that the specified debtor will default
has increased significantly since the guarantee is
issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial instruments (continued)
(vi) Derecognition (continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair
value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss for the year.

3.9 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are payable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management. Demand
deposits with restrictions on use are included in the cash
and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of
cash flows if they are available to meet short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of 12 months
or less. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use asset
The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise:

(i)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying
a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEMNE &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases (continued) 3.11 A& (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEFEHEBA (B
Right-of-use asset (continued) EHEEE (&)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are
carried at cost. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group

measures the lease liability by:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability;

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEMNE &
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases (continued) 3.11 A& (&

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as lease receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15
to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale
of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does not recognise
the transferred asset and recognises loan receivables
equal to the transfer proceeds within the scope of
HKFRS 9; while the Group as a seller-lessee continues
to recognise the assets and accounts for the transfer
proceeds as borrowings from the finance lease company
within the scope of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the first-in first out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Finance leasing income consists of finance lease
income and is recognised over the period of lease (see
accounting policy in respect of leases in Note 3.11)
and in accordance with HKFRS 16. Interest income is
calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount
of finance lease receivables, except for those which have
subsequently become credit-impaired, for which interest
income is calculated with reference to their amortised
cost from the next reporting period.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Revenue recognition (continued)

3. FEGHHEME &

3.13 =R ()

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

(i)  Provision of postpartum care service
Revenue is recognised over time as the postpartum
care, healthcare and other services are provided.
Deposits will be made upon the confirmation of
the orders and most of the remaining balance will
be paid upon the commencement of the service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —

FrZA=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) Trading of medical equipment and
consumables
Customers obtain control of the medical
equipment and consumables when the goods
are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the
customers accepted the medical equipment and
consumables.

There is generally only one performance
obligation. The Group allows a credit period of
0-30 days to its customers.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods/services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods/services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEMNE &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

3.14 BE (MBEERSI ZRE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets other than goodwill, right-of-use
assets and interests in subsidiaries to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see Note
3.6), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Retirement benefit schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Employees in the PRC are members of a state-
managed employee pension scheme operated
by the relevant municipal government in the
PRC which undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees. The Group’s obligation is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FETHHBEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Borrowing costs 3.16 B s

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
which require a substantial period of time to be
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
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are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which A ERm N o
they are incurred.
3.17 Income taxes 3.17 FRER

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEr & —fFF+ _H=+—HIFFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not
part of the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, provided that
the deductible temporary differences are not arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination that
affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty related to

income taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEMNE &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

3.17 FREMHR (&)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if, the entity has a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —

FrZA=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments: (1) finance leasing; (2) postpartum care
services; and (3) trading of medical equipment and
consumables.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment profit under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

° finance costs

° income tax expense

are not included in arriving at the operating profit of the
operating segment.

Segment assets and liabilities exclude corporate assets
and liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applied
to deferred tax assets/liabilities and the Group's
headquarter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.19 Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner,

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Government grants

3.21

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of finance lease receivables

The measurement of impairment of finance lease receivables
requires judgement in evaluating the ECL. The Group uses
a provision matrix to measure ECL for the finance lease
receivables, except for the finance lease receivables which is
credit-impaired, which is assessed for ECL individually. As part
of the measurement process, the assessment of PD and LGD
is based on a number of historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort.

In particular, the parameters of the ECL models for the
provision matrix that require the use of judgements and
estimates mainly include (i) internal credit rating which
assign PD to grades of the finance lease receivables; (ii)
determination of associations between macroeconomic
scenarios and economic inputs, such as non-farm payroll
and purchasing managers’ index and the effect on PD, LGD
and EAD; (iii) selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models; and (iv) the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows, and fair value
of the pledged underlying assets.

In addition, finance lease receivables which are credit-
impaired are assessed for ECL individually based on
expectation of cash flows that take into account the
individual circumstances, including fair value of the pledged
underlying assets based on available market information and
credit risks characteristics of the particular individual lessees.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates
of expected cash flows to be received. The information
about the ECL and the Group's finance lease receivables are
disclosed in Notes 9, 19 and 37.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
Goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
when indicators exist. Further, irrespective of whether there
is any indication of impairment, goodwill are required to
be tested annually for impairment. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the cash
generating units (“CGUs") operating in the provision of
postpartum care services. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use or fair
value less cost of disposal, whichever is higher. The value-
in-use calculation derived from the most recent budget plan
approved by the management requires the management to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs and a suitable discount rate and future revenue growth
rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further information on the impairment assessment on the
CGUs are provided in Note 17.

Recognition of deferred taxation

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets of
RMB5,438,000 (2020: RMB5,070,000), in relation to the
temporary difference arising from finance lease income and
ECL provision were recognised in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position. The realisability of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes
place. Details of the deferred tax are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value of financial assets

As at 31 December 2021, a significant amount of the Group’s
financial assets are investments in bond investment trusts
with carrying amounts of RMB35,322,000 (2020: Nil), which
are measured at fair value with fair value being determined
based on significant unobservable inputs using the net assets
value provided by the external counterparties. Judgment and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. Details of
the fair value measurements of these financial instruments are
disclosed in Notes 22 and 37.

REVENUE

Revenue for the year represents finance leasing income,
interest income on loan receivables, income from postpartum
care services and income from trading of medical equipment
and consumables in the PRC. The amounts of each significant
category of revenue recognised in revenue during the year are
as follows:

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

FTEERARZEFERER
&5t @

THBEERABRZAFE

N _E_—F+ZHA=1+—H &&
EEACHEEAKRBENESKER
FEoREEEA ARE35,322,000 (Z
T_TFEE)ULTFEESE D
TEBEERERTITRZG AR
FRMBTZHFRENEETEE
EoBIUMRBGEERMNREERE A
HEREZETHEMMG HEE
REAEEMNRRECEERELET
BENATEEREEAAE -ELE%
MTAENATEESEFIEETME22
37 EE o

W x5
FABR@ERERPEZMEHEE
A BRERFBUA~ B FIRFBUA
RBEBMREMEZRA - AFE
FEWm PN EEERW AR
ERRUT

2021 2020

—B_—HF —EBIE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT
Finance leasing income RBREWA 50,575 54,584
Interest income from loan receivables R E=F 2 WA 662 1,738
Income from postpartum care services BT ERFEUWA 51,447 2,190

Income from trading of BREIMEEMEZ A

medical equipment and consumables 16,758 -
119,442 58,512
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the years ended 31

December 2021

and 2020,

information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
provided to the Group’s most senior management (i.e. the

S ERE

BE_E_—FERIZZEF+ZA
—t+—HIEFE BHATEERRS
BEE BRTES) NERAERET

executive directors) is set out below: ERDINEEWT -
2021 B
Finance
leasing Trading Postpartum
service business care service Total
MERERS BRER BF R Hast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AE®FT ARETx AR®BTFT AEEFT
Reportable segment revenue ] 233 Uiz
(external customers) GrEPER) 51,237 16,758 51,447 119,442
Reportable segment profit A 2| 14,415 228 3,606 18,249
Fair value gain on financial NEEEFABRZ
assets at FVTPL TREEMN
NEEWE 2,365
Other corporate income HE AW A 232
Other corporate expenses HM AR (6,684)
Finance costs BB A (7,996)
Profit before income tax BRPTS A E A 6,166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEEH &=

Finance
leasing Trading Postpartum
service business care service Total
MEHE SRS BREH BFR#% wEt
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETw ARBFT ARBFT ARETw
Reportable segment assets ERDHBEE 416,177 7,912 63,363 487,452
Property, plant and equipment ¥l RE K& 407
Prepayments, deposits and FANRIE e REAM
other receivables FEW IR 730
Deferred tax assets REREEE 5,438
Bank balances and cash IRITARERRIRE 2,762
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEESABRZ
EHEE 35,322
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 638
Group assets EEEE 532,749
Reportable segment liabilities B] 2H{ D& & 170,032 71 49,545 219,648
Other payables and HM N RIE R
accrued charges FEstE R 3,181
Provision for taxation fET 218 1,896
Lease liabilities HEaR 664
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERR 3,038
Group liabilities EEEaE 228,427
Impairment losses of FE W RIS R E 5 18 R B
receivables (net) (4,800) - - (4,800)
Interest income ISUON 50 7 155 212
Interest expenses FEMZ (6,290) - (1,662) (7,952)
Depreciation of property, ME--BERZEINE
plant and equipment (3,455) - (1,466) (4,921)
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREZEENE
assets (1,952) - (8,602) (10,554)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEH =
2020 —EmomE
Finance Postpartum
leasing service care service Total
B ERT B FIR aast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT AREFTT

Reportable segment revenue 8] 23R U

(external customers) (G =) 56,322 2,190 58,512
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B] 2 D 354, (E518) 34,285 (227) 34,058
Other corporate income H AW A 1,602
Other corporate expenses Htt BEMAX (12,209)
Finance costs EE= Wi (8,296)
Profit before income tax FRPR1SR AT A 15,155
Reportable segment assets AERNDIEE 373,537 9,800 383,337
Property, plant and equipment #)%¥BE KRR E 2,043
Prepayments and other TR RRIE & H At FE UL

receivables EVQL] 429
Deferred tax assets FERMIBE E 5,070
Cash and bank balances RERIRTTARR 39,519
Prepayments in acquisition of WK E A B B IE

subsidiaries 7,200
Refundable rental deposit ARERERE 510
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,503
Group assets EEEE 439,611
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE MBI
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEER @

Finance Postpartum
leasing service care service Total
MEAERY BFR#% “a st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBFT AR®ETT AR®ETT
Reportable segment liabilities BI2FHK D WEEB 86,931 2,363 89,294
Other payables and accrued HMELHRIER
charges fEst&E B 5,398
Lease liabilities HESRE 1,443
Provision for taxation FE(S 7218 6,018
Bank borrowings fﬁfﬂa = 33,000
Deferred tax liabilities IERIEAE 1,146
Group liabilities EEaE 136,299
Capital expenditure BAREZH 13,146 294 13,440
Impairment losses of FEWRIE R BEE 1B
receivables (3,500) - (3,500)
Interest income FEWA 29 2 31
Interest expenses FMEMEZ (6,945) - (6,945)
Depreciation of property, ME - -BERKBITE
plant and equipment (1,143) (8) (1,151)
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FRABEEEITE
assets (2,344) - (2,344)
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the BE_E —FRBEEF+A

Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group's operation is in the PRC. All the Group's
revenue and major non-current assets are attributable to and

located in the PRC.

None of the customers contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group of the corresponding years.

=t —BIEEERANARKERA

B MASEBRETZEFEMBAERE 4
EEZFEREREBIFABEEY
AR HRE -

MEEREMAERENIEREE 2482
I BHE10% ©

ZanEREEARAE FEHSE 2021

175



176

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HihlhmkiEsia

2021 2020
g% —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETT AREFIT

Fair value gain on financial assets NFEEFABRZEMEEN
at FVTPL NEBEW = 2,365 1,994
Government subsidies (Note i) BT B (BT 51D 2,142 2,078
Exchange gain/(loss), net FE R, (B518) $%8 207 (358)
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-19— 1B & R - 726
Others Hh 36 27
4,750 4,467

Note: I

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained support granted by governments during the Covid-19
pandemic, included RMB49,000 Employment Support
Scheme from government of HKSAR and RMB391,000 from
government of the PRC. The PRC tax authority has announced
that for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, entities engaged in provision of service in four particular
areas could have extra deduction on VAT amounted to
RMB2,142,000 (2020: RMB1,638,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE M B IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE —F - —FF+ A=+ —HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. RtERKZS
2021 2020
—EZ-F —TITF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Imputed interests on interest-free deposits FIEFHEE A R B &K
from finance lease customers HEFE 381 2,878
Interests on bank borrowings RITEMAE 6,374 4,521
Interests on lease liabilities HEsERE 1,241 897
7,996 8,296
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL 9. FEHAEREXENIETZ
MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL AIEES1E (0FR$EEE)
2021 2020
—E-—f& —E-EE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T AR¥TFIT
Impairment losses recognised on: BEE B
— Finance lease receivables —RIEREEREIE 4,862 3,567
— Loan receivables —EWEmR (62) (67)
4,800 3,500

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 37.

A EF BB M EE37 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFF1EIR AR F

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

BREFISMATEM B R GEA) :

(crediting):
2021 2020
T —F —EIETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARYEFT ARBTIT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) EEHEM (EE11) 2,050 1,780
Other staff costs: HME T :
— Salaries, allowances and other —¥re R KREME TER
staff benefits 30,406 13,990
— Staffs' retirement benefit scheme —B T RREHETEH
contributions 4,436 66
Total staff costs BT A% 36,892 15,836
Less: staff costs recognised as research & : REMKE A HEA
and development costs in other Bt 35 P AR B TR AR
operating expenses (2,228) (1,200)
Staff costs recognised in profit or loss PiEmERZ BT RA 34,664 14,636
Amortisation of intangible assets mLEE#RE 1,020 85
Auditor’s remuneration ZE M 1,079 1,449
Cost of inventories sold HEFEMA 16,348 -
Depreciation of property, plant and YE~ B RSB EITE
equipment 5,416 1,531
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERNE 11,900 4,110
Property, plant and equipment written off #J2£ « Bt 5= Kz &8 5 Hf 6 - 1
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BE &K ER G
plant and equipment (25) -
Research and development costs BRARSZ A ER A
recognised as an expenses GrAHMEERS)
(included in other operating expenses) 2,431 1,593
Short-term lease payments FHATR B IR 5,756 894

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

11. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND TOP M EEMERTLRSHE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES =]
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The aggregate amounts of the emoluments paid or B S E E R TBAEE Y 3
payable to the directors and the chief executive are as B4RZEN T !
follows:
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fee allowances contributions Total
RINER
He  HEREM BE e st

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi AREBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

2021 it

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Zhang Junshen RERTE 598 585 78 1,261

Mr. Zhang Yong RELE (i 85 20 5 110

Mr. Zhang Junwei RERRE (i) 37 - - 37

Non-executive director FHTES

Mr. Lyu Di 2@kt - 364 78 442

Independent non-executive directors BURITES

Mr. Chan Chi Fung Leo BEERE 100 - - 100

Mr. Chow Siu Hang BikERE 100 - - 100

Mr. Lin Weibin MEREE ) - - - -

Dr. Deng Bin PREL (iv) - - - -
920 969 161 2,050

2020 b -

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Zhang Junshen RERTE 108 870 3 981

Mr. Zhang Junwei REREL (i) 108 - - 108

Non-executive director FHTES

Mr. Lyu Di e - 363 3 366

Independent non-executive directors BUERITES

Mr. Chan Chi Fung Leo BTG xE 108 - - 108

Mr. Li Zhensheng FRELE (v) 45 - - 45

Mr. Zhang Yong RELE (i) 64 - - 64

Mr. Chow Siu Hang BkERE 108 - - 108
541 1,233 6 1,780
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND TOP
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(i) Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
1 June 2020 and re-designated to an executive director
on 13 May 2021.

(i) Resigned on 13 May 2021.

(i) Appointed on 13 May 2021 and resigned on 31
December 2021. Mr. Lin Weibin has waived his
remuneration during the period from 13 May 2021 to 31
December 2021.

(iv)  Appointed on 31 December 2021.

(v)  Resigned on 1 June 2020.

Save as above, during each of the two years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, none of the directors waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration and there were
no emoluments paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE M B IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T =+ —HIFFEEF

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND TOP M EENERTRESTHIE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) =00
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ZEERSHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest

FEEMEESHALEAD R

in the Group for the year included one (2020: one) BEALATIMNMBES (CEE

director whose emolument is reflected in the analysis
presented above. Emoluments payable to the remaining
four (2020: four) individuals during the year are as

F18) RENWENR X2
5B 3 4 2 B T [ BR o F& A F &R
TAZEAAN (CEZEF 1 48) 8

follows: M=
2021 2020
—E-—%F TETEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥TF T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits #r & “;ZBE R EMBF] 3,240 3,260

Retirement benefit scheme BRIREFFTHEIHER

contributions 233 24
3,473 3,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEr & —fFF+ _H=+—HIFFEE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND TOP

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

M EENERTRESTHIE
8 @)
(b) RRBEHMAL @

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

HMAFLUTERE :

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
B —EoEE
Emolument bands BN E

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 3 3

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 75 - -

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 B TE
2,000,000/ 7T - -

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 E
2,500,000 7T 1 1
4 4

During each of the two years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

12. FREMR Gt A) X

2021 2020
T TECEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREEFTT

The charge comprises: ZHEE

Current tax BNHERR 18

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FRE R EMER 324 3,401
Deferred tax (Note 18) EIEIRTE (MY5E18) (601) (1,131
(277) 2,270

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group's income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years, except
for one subsidiary of the Group which is recognised as high
technology enterprise is entitled to enjoy a preferential EIT
rate of 15% (2020: Nil).

According to the EIT Law and the Implementation of the
EIT Law of the PRC, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group
qualified as small low-profit enterprises with annual taxable
income not more than RMB1,000,000, and the portion that
exceeds RMB1,000,000 but does not exceed RMB3,000,000
(inclusive) are entitled to enterprise income tax calculated at
12.5% and 50% of its taxable income at a tax rate of 20%,

respectively.

MEREBRBEFHERG RASK
ERZWALIFRNEBEBELENKRESR

BRAEE-REDBESSHIRMEZE
ZIBABEREZAEEREEMBR
K15% (ZZ2ZZF 1 J|) S BRERE
hEMERE TEEMRBRE) kit
EFEREABRIZS > RENE QS
RMmEEEZREIEH25% o

RIBFELEMBRIERDEME
MIEBHEG Fa/NEMA bR
HEHNETFAEEFRENB AR B
BARYE1,000,000c BB AR
1,000,0007c B & A K 13,000,0007T
(& AR13,000,0007T) 2B 9 A FE 2R
UL > D BIEI%12.5% % 50% 5t A F&E
MIRFT S 88 ¥20% MM R b 2
Fri8# o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (continued)

12. FREM Gt A) X &

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FARNEBEAZTHGESERREMS
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or W &R A 2 FRETAS 3R A & A1) E BR 10
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: e
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TITF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Tt AREFT
Profit before income tax MRERS IR AET 6,166 15,155
Tax at the domestic enterprise FEIE A EFAERREA25%
income tax rate in the PRC of 25% BRI 1,541 3,788
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AERNASZ 2 MBEE 278 58
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARRWAZREZE
tax purpose (1,140) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BB AT RER 2 MIEEIE
losses (371) (100)
Statutory tax concession E BRI R (716) (419)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBRIERBZMBEE 364 -
Withholding tax on distributable earnings A B} &A= A 2B
of the PRC subsidiaries W FEINIRIRIE (233) (1,057)
Income tax (credit)/expenses Frisft Gt A) B (277) 2,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDENDS

13. K2

14.

2021 2020
—E-—F —TITF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARHF ARBFT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year 93k U ATEE Z R EARR B
of HK2.5 cents (2020: HK3 cents) Fhe2. 5581
per share (ZE2ZZF 338 8,333 10,884

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of
HK2.5 cents (2020: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share has been
proposed by the board of directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB5,488,000 (2020: RMB12,981,000) and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of
400,000,000 (2020: 400,000,000).

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share in issue
during both years.

14.

RERERERB AOESTEERIRE
BHE_ZZ—F+ZA=+—HzZX
R ESRE®R2.581 (2020 : 2.5
B AR AERERNERRKRER
FERGgEHE

BREH
SREXBMDIRELBDEE AEMSL
AR #5,488,0007T (ZZ =4 ¢
AE#812,981,00070) RERE ETE
B 2 N HESF 1588400,000,00088 (—
T T4F : 400,000,00088) 5t o

HRMEFERNLESETETHRE

EER HUEREBRANNASRESR
‘BHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ME -BER=E

Furniture
and office Leasehold Motor
equipment improvements vehicle Total
FAER
MAERE HEMERE RE fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
Cost ﬁﬁzk
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZE—-F—H 1,248 535 - 1,783
Acquisition of a subsidiary KRB A 8 - - 8
Additions &1m 1,303 12,605 1,244 15,152
Write off isH (28) - - (28)
At 31 December 2020 and RZ2Z2E+-F=+—-H~k
1 January 2021 5 —-%—-F-H 2,531 13,140 1,244 16,915
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AT
(Note 32) (Mtz£32) 599 2,294 - 2,893
Additions =1m 344 1,194 - 1,538
Disposal ik - - (1,244) (1,244)
At 31 December 2021 RIZEZ-F+ZA=1+—H 3,474 16,628 - 20,102
Accumulated depreciation REHiNE
At 1 January 2020 ZZ22F5-F—H 737 107 - 844
Depreciation e 286 1,245 - 1,531
Write off isH 27) - - 27
At 31 December 2020 and RZ2Z2E+-F=1+—H~k
1 January 2021 5" —-%—-F-H 99 1,352 - 2,348
Depreciation nE 620 4,589 207 5416
Disposal iz} - - (207) (207)
At 31 December 2021 KRR —F+-A=+—H 1,616 5,941 - 1,557
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2021 RIZ2Z-F+ZA=1+—H 1,858 10,687 - 12,545
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEFE+ZA=1+—H 1,535 11,788 1,244 14,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

16. EAEEE

Leasehold land and buildings

HELMRET
2021 2020
—EB-—-F b=l 5
RMB000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

At 1 January w—A—H

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) WEEM @ AR (FY5E32)
Lease commencement MHERER

Lease modification HEEST

Depreciation e

At 31 December w+ZB=+—H

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
2 to 8 years (2020: 2 to 5 years). Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

10,295 13,969
17,596 -
480 436
(4,711) -
(11,900) (4,110)
11,760 10,295

RWmEFEE *EBREEXHMEAE
ZEMAE-HESRHEBEEH
[RA2ESE (CE-TF 1 285F) o M
EFREAABREERAREES
BREHNERKREF - REEHEESF
REFEAAHFEABZER A&
ERAeRzZERERBEANNITER
Z HAfE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer
Goodwill Trademark software Total
BHe A L 4t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREF T AREF T AREFT
Cost [
At 1 January 2020 AZEIZFE—F—H - - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WERB AT 2,318 1,900 - 4,218
Addition =10 - - 5,099 5,099
At 31 December 2020 and ATETEREE+"AZ+—HK

1 January 2021 _E_-F—-F—H 2,318 1,900 5,099 9,317
Acquisition of subsidiaries W E A E]

(Note 32) (P5E32) 13,433 8,500 - 21,933
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H 15,751 10,400 5,099 31,250
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 January 2020 NZEZZF—F—H - - - -
Amortisation B - - 85 85
At 31 December 2020 and ATETEE+"AZ+—HK

1 January 2021 “Z”_—-%—-HF—H - - 85 85
Amortisation #i - - 1,020 1,020
At 31 December 2021 A_E_—-E+"R=1+—H - - 1,105 1,105
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2021 A_E_—-E+"R=1+—H 15,751 10,400 3,994 30,145
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEF+ZA=1+—H 2,318 1,900 5,014 9,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The net carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 is allocated to the CGUs as follows:

17.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

BVEE @
KRB —E#R-F-FE+_A
SH-AMBEEREIEIRERS

EEBAWMT

Goodwill carrying amount

HEREE
2021 2020
—g--# —T-Tx
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREFIT
CGUs of Postpartum Care Services BREBTFRBZIREELBEN
in Wuhan 4,680 2,318
CGU of Postpartum Care Services EMNBFIRBIREELSEN
in Guangzhou 11,071 -
15,751 2,318

The Group is required to test, on an annual basis, whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value in use calculations.
The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash
flows and the determination of a discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of the cash flows.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates of 2% (2020: 3%). The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the postpartum care service business in which the CGUs
operates. The discount rate used for VIU of 17% (2020: 17 %)
is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs, management is not
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate
changes in the key assumptions. Management determines
that the recoverable amounts of the CGUs containing

goodwill does not suffer any impairment.

FAEBASFASBHER O HERARA
B-HJRESHELREEABESE
BE-ERLEAZREMARKRES
MEBEBLBEENREUFEREREN
HE-

ReESBUZIKROSELREE
BEERLEMEERERHHRES
HRAIRESNEEENEREENE
FGMEBT AEHRBZRERENE
RAEAEER2% (CTZ_FF 1 3%)
MEE - ZIEEXTFABBRSESE
BUKEMENA FRBITEZ RS
THEEX ARFEREENEEZZ
BEIRKN17% (CEZBF 1 17%) AR
AR ERREESEMUZEER

1A
fz o

R AUEEREELBUZER
BEZZE)N EERREFILANE
FREMEUREEZERRAFLE
BrAUREEH - EEEIRCEDHE
ZHRETEFEMZJWE SR ER
RAEfIREIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

17.

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
In accordance with HKFRS 3
the Group recognised acquired subsidiaries’ assets and

"Business Combination”,

liabilities which included intangible assets at the acquisition
date. The fair values of trademark of RMB&,500,000 for
Guangzhou Sheng Cheng Dunnan Enterprise Management
Co., Limited (“Dunnan”) and its subsidiaries (“Dunnan
Group”) (2020: RMB1,900,000 for Wuhan Desheng Meimei
Health Management Co. Ltd. ("Desheng Meimei"”)) on
the respective acquisition dates was determined based on
valuations performed by an independent professional valuer,
APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited. The valuations
were determined based on the discounted cash flow method
of income approach.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

17.

18.

mILEE &
REEATHREEREIREHS
Bl AEBRRWEHREIS WE
EENFANEEKREBE (AEELE
E) EMNERIEMEEBTEETRA
8 (T#/d) RENBLE (THEmE
E)RKERENEEEEAARE
8,500,000 (ZEZZF | HLEER =
ERBEEERERAT(MEEBESE) A
E11,900,0007T) G iR BRI F XL
BMDAREETGERERAERARE
THNHEEE -HENREMRRES
TR AEEERE ©

IEIERR IR
BUT 5 BB 7S 4R 65 T 2 BB IE IR TS
B2

2021 2020

—E-—%F “ETEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥TF T

Deferred tax assets RN IEE = 5,438 5,070
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAG (3,038) (1,146)
2,400 3,924
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 18. IEIETRTE (2
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) MTHINFARDBZEERIEREBEE
recognised and movements thereon during the year: B/ (al) REEH
Temporary
Undistributed Fair value difference
earnings of  increase on arising from
PRC intangible ECL finance lease
subsidiaries assets provision income Total
EREHRE
RAEHE WAEE
MEAR BVEEZ FRHER ok icRya
AlE  ATEEN P =8 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR AREFr ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZ2ZEF—F—H (1,978) - 3,320 1,676 3,018
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEHRB AR - (225) - - (225)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 5t A/ (G0 E) B
(Note 12) (P5E12) 1,057 - 875 (801) 1,131
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZEE+°A=1+—HBk
1 January 2021 e s (921) (225) 4,195 875 3,924
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AT
(Note 32) (5£32) - (2,125) - - (2,125)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 5t A/ (N H) 8%
(Note 12) (M5E12) 233 - 1,200 (832) 601
At 31 December 2021 R_Z_—-&E+”-B=1+—H (688) (2,350) 5,395 43 2,400

Pursuant to the EIT Law and its detailed implementation rules,
dividend distributed out of the profit generated thereafter,
shall be subject to EIT at 5% (2020: 5%) and withheld by the
PRC entities.

RIBEEMSRZREBIMA > B
t®EENMBROIKNERE  BIZ
5% (ZEZZF 1 5%) NIREHME
EFEH wHRPEBERASEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

18.

19.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the reporting date, the amount of the unutilised tax losses
is as follows:

18.

IRIERIE =
WEER kB ARBERY SEN
T

2021 2020

B BT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥TF T

Unutilised tax losses KENBRFEER 2,570 2,123

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not
been recognised in the financial statements due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams against which the tax
losses can be utilised. All tax losses had no expiry dates under
the current tax legislation.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/LOAN
RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements as a
lessor for equipment and motor vehicles. The average terms
of finance leases entered into usually range from 1 to 3
years. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the
contract date over the lease terms.

All of the lease contracts are with guaranteed residual values.
There was no unguaranteed residual value of leased assets
and no contingent rent arrangement that needed to be
recognised in both periods.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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B MEHEERESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/LOAN
RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Finance lease receivables

4 A

17177 g |

BA 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

19. Bt EEFH EEYFIE FEIX
BN MEHEETRERS

6=

MEEERWMRE

RIEBERE REBERERE
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZZT-F TZ2IZF T TZIEZR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBETR ARET®
Finance lease receivables comprises:  FABEMAEEWRERLE
Within one year —FR 248,684 256,374 222,717 221,404
In the second year ol 62,328 83,200 56,775 74,670
In the third year = 8,867 12,715 8,105 12,125
319,879 352,289 287,597 308,199
Less: Unearned finance income B RBIRRMERA (32,282) (44,090) - -
Present value of minimum lease payments {5 EHIERE 287,597 308,199 287,597 308,199
Less: lifetime ECL allowance e RRREREARE (21,193) (16,331) (21,193) (16,331)
266,404 291,868 266,404 291,868
Represented by: MERENDNS
Current assets MBEE 206,903 207,488
Non-current assets FRBEE 59,501 84,380
266,404 291,868

As at 31 December 2021, the interest rates implicit in the
above finance leases range mainly from 5.8% to 19.5%
(2020: 8.2% to 21.2%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, finance lease receivables with gross
carrying amount of RMB9,028,000 (2020: RMB24,015,000)
were pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (Note
27(ii)) and RMB84,058,000 (2020: Nil) were pledged to secure
the Group's other borrowings from a finance lease company
(Note 27(iii)).

R ZE - —F+"HA=+—H> Lkt

MEHENESENERNFS8%E
19.5% (CE-_FF :18.2%%FE21.2%) °

RZE-Z—F+-BA=+—H K@\
48%zE \ R 19,028,0007T (Z B B4 .
AR 124,015,00070) 2 EHE/E
WHRIEBEERUWMERNEENRITE
A (MFEE27(i) B AR 1684,058,0007T
TIEIZTF T ZRERERIE
BHEEHR —XmEBREABER
NEBMEMMERR FH5E27()) ©
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19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/LOAN

RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Finance lease receivables (continued)

Finance lease receivables are mainly secured by the leased
assets which are used in printing industry, medical industry
and logistics industry and customers’ deposits where
applicable. Customers’ deposits are collected and calculated
based on a certain percentage of the entire value of the lease
contract. Certain deposits are returned to the customers in
full by end of lease period according to the terms of the lease
contract. When the lease contract expires and all liabilities
and obligations under the lease contract have been fulfilled,
the lessor must return the full lease deposits to the lessee.
The balance of the customers’ deposits can also be applied
and used to settle any outstanding lease payments for the
corresponding lease contract. As at 31 December 2021, the
customers’ deposits of RMB147,000 (2020: RMB5,679,000)
to be returned to the customers in full by end of lease
period while customers’ deposits of RMB147,000 (2020:
RMB5,422,000) will be repayable within 12 months from the
reporting date and therefore classified as current liabilities.
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

RS A& FEUWARIE,FEUR
B RMEHEERES
#

AR EREWERIE (B)
HEAERKRFEZITEHARER
E BEERMTENHEEERE
Efs (MER) (FRF -BEREET
RHEGNEEENETE LI
BMEHE BB REBEEESHNK
TR ERERBEEHBRETRER 8
MEAHNIPBERESNETHEAE
EREREBOERBITR HWAAKEA
BHAMAARCIZBEELRE THIZ
CEHRBBTIUEARKABRENE
AEERAESINREERENR-
A _E_—F+_B=+—H'ER
HEABARK147,0000 (ZEZF
£ ANR15,679,0007) RS
FRE2HRETFTER FEEEAA
RIE147,000c (ZE2EZEF . AR
5,422,0007T) R EHM12EBARNEE
REBW WD A TENEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE M B IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE —F - —FF+ A=+ —HIFE

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/LOAN 19. M EHEREWEIE B
RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE BEXN mEREETERERS

LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued) #=

AEEREWERIE (&
UMTABEEARNRERE 5N
S HNERE DT (FEIERBREHR
B AR EN B D EAE R ¢

Finance lease receivables (continued)

The following is an aging analysis based on due dates of
the finance lease receivables instalments which are past due
(instalments which are not yet due at the end of the reporting

period are excluded):

2021 2020
—EZ-F “TITF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥TF T
Past due by: Bl
1 — 30 days 1ZE30H 2,240 920
31 - 90 days 31E90H 2,860 1,005
More than 90 days BiB90H 6,728 12,000
11,828 13,925
Loan receivables W E =k
2021 2020
—E-—& Y-
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TFTT AR¥EFIT
Fixed-rate loan receivables: BEEHEERER :
Within one year — &R 829 6,999
One to two years —FE "5 170 798
More than two years but not more than MEMN EEBRBBRE
five years - 71
999 7,868
Less: 12 months ECL allowance BB B TERERBEREE (7) (69)
992 7,799
Represented by: MEMENDITS
Current assets TMENEE 823 6,935
Non-current assets EREEE 169 864
992 7,799
sxaEREASRAT S£EH®E2021 195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/LOAN 19. M EHEREWEIE B

RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 16, the sales and leaseback
transaction which does not satisfy the requirements of HKFRS
15 as a sale is recognised as a loan receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of loan
receivables amounting to RMB992,000 (2020: RMB7,799,000)
are pledged with collaterals such as equipment and motor
vehicles. The Group is not permitted to sell the collaterals in
the absence of default by the borrower. There has not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for
the loan receivables. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all
of the loan receivables were not past due.

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables of RMB721,000
(2020: RMB1,054,000) were pledged to secure the Group's
bank borrowings (Note 27(ii)).

Details of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables
and loan receivables are set out in Note 37.
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FEWEE R (4%
REEBHMBREEE 1638 B
ERERRPFHAEEMBREE
AIBISHIEAMENRE  ARES
BUBRS R BORERARBE

=+
e

RZE-_—F+"_B=+—H Elk
ERE@mAEAS AR®992,0007T (Z
ETFHF AR®7,799,00070) » MR
BERAEFEABERD -TERARE
HNERE AEEFSHEHIKRR
[EWEREFRMESETEE A&
RN B —HERZEZEF+ZA
=+—H FBRKEN&EEE-

W_B_—F+_A=+—H' AR
721,000 (ZEZZF : AR
1,054,0007T) FEWE M E B R UEE
REBMIRITER GFEE27(0) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

RE M B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE —F - —FF+ A=+ —HIFE

. BHEIRRIA

2021 2020
—E-—& CECBE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBETT

Trade receivables B 5 R’

2

=]

The Group allows a credit period of 0-30 days to its
customers for its trade receivables. As at 31 December 2021,
all of the trade receivables were not past due.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on invoice dates at the end of each reporting

501 -

TEBMERESRIGETFER
0-30KRTEARE-RN-_BE-_—F+_A4
—+—H FEEZERIELEA
HRo

REREHRZEZBHE DB
BZRMERE DM W T ¢

period:
2021 2020
—EZ-F g 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
1 — 30 days 1E30K 501 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. AHRIE-HE R HEMEU
RECEIVABLES RIE
2021 2020
—EZ-F —TITF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
e 5% AR¥T T AREFIT
Value-added tax recoverable AJUg[ElE(E R 4,270 4,461
Prepayments SN S 14,826 2,270
Security deposits fRE8E (i) 4,505 -
Refundable rental deposits AREEERSE (i) 2,885 1,202
Other receivables H W= 2,757 833
29,243 8,766
Notes: B EE -
2021 2020
—E-—-F TEIRE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT AR#FT
(i) Represented by: () MEREN DA :
— Current portion —REE D 747 -
- Non-current portion —IERENEB D 3,758 -
(i) Represented by: (i) MEBENDINS :
— Current portion —mENE D 522 185
- Non-current portion —IERBENEB D 2,363 1,017

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The balance comprises investments in bond investment trusts
with various licensed financial institutions in the PRC. The
Group has determined that the reported net assets values
which were provided by the external counterparties represent
the fair values of the investments. All the financial assets at
FVTPL are denominated in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

BALANCES AND CASH

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

23. HRHRITERRITE
KRBT

2021 2020

—EZ—F ZEIEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AE®ETT

Bank balances and cash IRITERAEIRS 33,492 84,814

Restricted bank deposits BRFIERITER

Guaranteed deposits (Note i) REBEE (MK 15,000 -
Bank deposits with restrictions on use R & B iRTTrEmr (e 5Eii)

(Note ii) 91,023 -

106,023 -

The bank balances and the restricted bank deposits of the

Group carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.01% to
0.35% (2020: 0.01% to 0.30%) per annum.

Notes:

()

(if)

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted bank deposits of
RMB10,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 are deposits in two
banks as guaranteed deposits for borrowings and the trading
customers, respectively (Notes 27(ii) and 39).

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreements as mentioned
in Note 27(iii), the Group agreed to open a supervision
account at a bank recognised by the Buyer-lessor to carry out
supervision on the use of lease funds and rental repayment.
As at 31 December 2021, included in the supervision
account of approximately RMB90,099,000 represents the
transfer considerations from the Buyer-lessor (Note 27(iii))
and is available to be used by the Group to meet its short-
term working capital needs and cash flows for finance
lease business. Therefore, bank deposits of approximately
RMB90,099,000 in the supervision account is included in the
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2021.

REBZIRTHGBRBERBIBITER
BHiGAHEFEAEF0.01%E0.35%
(ZEZZF :0.01%%E0.30%)°

(if)

RIEZ—H+ZA=+—H' AR
#10,000,0007cF1 A E #5,000,000
TTMBERFIRITERD B AMKRIEIT
ERNRESNEZEERENRE R
(MFEE27(ii) 2 39) ©

IRIE T 5E27(iii) Pt 19 & & BIFE 177 3%
FEERBETEER-HHAAERR
ANRITHEILIEER,  HlEE®
NERMASEZEBRETEE -1
T —F+-RB=+—H =t AE
BERF ML AR 90,099,000t
REEAF-HEAANEZHE (W
27Gi) AR EERARN R EEME
HEXENEHREEESERKMNR:
oA MEBEE_ZEZ-_—F+_-H
—t+t—HIEFENRERERMS
EERAHFARSHREEEYN
RITTFEM AL AR 190,099,000t ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
The bank balances and the restricted bank deposits that
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of respective entities are set out below:

23. HRHRITERRITE

BRIEE®
LUBRIREE > AR S LI oh > s 5t
B2 BT 5 REREETERRT
W

2021 2020
—E-—F —TITF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Hong Kong dollar ("HK$") A7t (MB7Tl)
United States dollar (“US$") 7t (M%&)

The Group performed impairment assessment on restricted
bank deposits/bank balances, details of which are set out in
Note 37.

As at 31 December 2021, included in cash and bank balances
of the Group was RMB31,583,000 (2020: RMB83,030,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB placed with the
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through the banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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1,905 1,780
4 4
1,909 1,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 24, HitE(ITRIBERESTE B
CHARGES

2021 2020
g% —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Advance receipts from RBBERR ZEWRARIE
prospective customers 2,747 2,991
Contract liabilities (Note i) aHaE (M) 8,890 2,015
Other accrued charges HihrEst &R 4,026 3,330
Other tax payables HhENRIE 120 180
Other payables (Note ii) Hah g E (Festi) 3,201 3,560
18,984 12,076

Notes:

The contract liabilities mainly relate to advance considerations
received from customers and arose from the provision of
postpartum care services. The Group takes certain deposits
from customers on acceptance of the order, with the remainder

aRaREERERHAFRBME
EoAEBENEMTERBEER I
EFRE Mek TRAAENRES
FEREF ST BEMREMBFINIESE

of the consideration payable at the commencement of the FEaEEERBRM
service period. The deposits remains as contract liabilities until
such time as the services are provided.
Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: EEAaEEFUT
2021 2020
—E—F ZEITHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARFT
Balance as at 1 January nm—HA—H 2,015 -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result E#st AGRIABRENRAEEZ
of recognising revenue during the WaHERERERa®mRLD
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (2,015) -
Increases as a result of business RZEH G HFmIEMm (HeE32)
combination (Note 32) 7,705 -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result KB EH s AGREELR
of recognising revenue during the KEEZNHBRIERSH
year that was included in the contract ~ &f&RE
liabilities as a result of business
combination (7,705) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result FAFEPRIUWENET 1B i R IBH AR5
of receiving deposits during the year in EE &4 & E1E 0
respect of services not yet rendered 8,890 2,015
Balance as at 31 December w+ZA=+—H 8,890 2,015
Ko nEREERERAT FERS 2021
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AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 24, HihWERHRIERESTER

CHARGES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The Group applies the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose information about its remaining performance
obligation if the performance obligation is part of a contract
that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the balance included an outstanding (ii)
consideration of RMB1,000,000 for the acquisition of Wuhan
Jiaenbei Health Management Co. Ltd. (“Jiaenbei”) during
FY2021 (2020: RMB900,000 for the acquisition of Desheng
Meimei) as disclosed in Note 33(a).

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

(&
st (&)

BEENER-

FERXBERMBREENE 15
SEHNATRES L IRBOEER
FIETRRAR A —FERNBRENEREN
—&p T EREFEBETIGREN

RZ_ZE2_—F+-HB=+—8"&%
BREENEBEKEN T -
FEBHREZRERREEEARA
B(EERR)BAREHBEARE

1,000,00070 (ZEZSF. AR
900,000t AR W BB B AR = 3%) o

25. fAE&E

2021 2020

—E-—F “TITF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥TF T

Balance as at 1 January nw—A—H 11,220 14,888
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) WK B AR (MF5E32) 17,596 -
Lease commencement HEM®A 480 436
Interest expense FMEHEZ 1,241 897

Lease payments HE R (12,685) (5,001)
Lease modification HEET (4,711) -
Balance as at 31 December W+ZB=+—H 13,141 11,220

Represented by: MEMENDITA .

Current liabilities mENEE 6,201 3,491
Non-current liabilities ERHERE 6,940 7,729
13,141 11,220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

4 A
17177 g |

BA 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

25. fHE&aE @
R EN R H SR T

Future
lease Present
payments Interest value
KRR
e R RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREBFTT AREFT
As at 31 December 2021 BRI —%F
+-B=+—H
Due within one year —F RN EIE 6,742 541 6,201
Due in the second to fifth years “HEFERNEIE 7,060 663 6,397
Due after five years hFBEE 553 10 543
14,355 1,214 13,141
As at 31 December 2020 RIEZEF
+-B=+—H
Due within one year —F NI 4,145 654 3,491
Due in the second to fifth years ZERFARNEE 8,470 741 7,729
12,615 1,395 11,220
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other MEREEERNIIEEE®UINZE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities BEHENHEESEIITUT .
are set out below:
2021 2020
—E”—F “ECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARFT ARBTT
HK$ BT 355 1,044

EanEREEARAA
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AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

26. DEFERRED INCOME 26. & IEUT A
Deferred income represents the difference between the FIEWAER ViR BHRERAER
nominal value of the deposits from finance lease customers EREeNEEERAERAFTEZEN
and their fair values at initial recognition dates. Deferred ERORIEWACDREEHRMNERT
income is recognised in the profit or loss in a pattern which is MERERBBA 2N ARETER
consistent with recognition of finance leasing income over the RS o
lease period.
27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. sRIT R H MM ERR
2021 2020
—Eo—f kSt -3
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTIT
Bank borrowings due for repayment —EREHRER ZRITER
within one year
— Unsecured and guaranteed (Note i) —EIEWMRAER (W) 38,784 69,650
— Secured and guaranteed (Note ii) —BIRERBEER (i) 30,000 30,080
68,784 99,730
Bank borrowings due for repayment more #8i@— 2 HAEIE 2 R1TEMN
than one year
— Unsecured and guaranteed (Note i) —\BIEERAEER (EE) 4,722 -
- Secured and guaranteed (Note ii) —BRERAEER Gt 27,600 -
32,322 -
Total bank borrowings 4EIER 101,106 99,730
Other borrowings from a finance R—=XmMEHERBEZ
lease company (Note iii) HanfE R (B sEiii)
- Due for repayment within one year ——FREHEER 48,712 -
— Due for repayment more than —BE—FHHEE
one year 41,387 -
90,099 -
Total bank and other borrowings HIRTT R HL AR 191,205 99,730
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

Notes:

@)

(i)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB32,450,000 (2020: RMB33,650,000) were guaranteed by
financial guarantee companies, which are third-parties of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings of
RMB8,056,000 (2020: Nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Zhang
Junshen ("Mr. Zhang"), an executive director of the Company,
Ms. Tang Yiping ("Ms. Tang"), spouse of Mr. Zhang, and three
third-parties of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowing of
RMB3,000,000 (2020: RMB3,000,000) was guaranteed by ZYY
Finance Leasing, a subsidiary of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowing of
RMB27,600,000 (2020: Nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Zhang,
Ms. Tang, Mr. Zhang Shengjie, father of Controlling Individual
Shareholders, ZYY Finance Leasing and Shenzhen Ruiheng
Medical Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Ruiheng”), which
is controlled by the Controlling Individual Shareholders, two
subsidiaries of the Group, and Ziyuanyuan Investment Holdings
Limited (“Ziyuanyuan Investment”), which is controlled by
the Controlling Individual Shareholders. The bank borrowing
is secured by entire equity interests in Dunnan held by the
Company.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

27. IR1IT R EER @

(if)

A _EB_—F+"HB=+—H &

EEMIRITERAR32,450,0007T
“ETZF . AR¥33,650,0007T)

HE=HSmMIERABRMEER

W_E_—F+-RB=+—H K&
ErIRITER A R 18,056,0005T (=
ZTFF D) HHARBERITES
REFRAE (MRFEE)) REEZER
BHEEYLtE (Bt R=RE=
FABIREER

A ZE—F+ZA=+—H &&
E 8 iR1TER AR YE3,000,0007T (=
TTETE AR 3,000,0007T) HA
EBE-ZXMBARASRTTRERER
IR

A ZEZ—F+ZA=+—H'%&K
EEMIRTERARE27,600,0007T
(Z2ZZF  T)@FEREEZER
BAREZ B RBMITE MERA
NENFABRTITMERE REII
miR BB EHEREE R A LRI
18) R BIERRE A REES QBT
JHETTHREERMERLE( LT
TRENDRBER BOTEAUEA
B ANSE MR EFEIRR
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AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

27. IR1IT R EER @

MisE (42

(i)

(iii)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowing of
RMB30,000,000 (2020: RMB30,000,000) was guaranteed by
Mr. Zhang, Ms. Tang, Mr. Zhang Shengjie, Shenzhen Meijiaer
Health Management Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Ruiheng, two
subsidiaries of the Group, Ziyuanyuan Investment, and a third-
party of the Group. It was secured by charges over certain
finance lease receivables and loan receivables of ZYY Finance
Leasing as disclosed in Note 19.

Effective interest rate of bank borrowings ranged between
4.35% and 7.50% (2020: between 4.55% and 7%) per annum
for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group and
a finance lease company (the “Buyer-lessor”) entered into
sale and leaseback agreements, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to transfer the leased assets (the “Leased Assets”)
and/or change the registration to the name of the Buyer-
lessor with transfer considerations totalling of approximately
RMB90,099,000 (the “Considerations”), and the Buyer-lessor
agreed to lease the Leased Assets to the Group with a lease
period of 6 to 30 months. Upon expiration of the lease period,
the Group may purchase back the Leased Assets from the
Buyer-lessor at a nominal consideration.
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(if)

(iii)

(#)

A ZEZ—F+ZA=+—H"%&F
EEMIRITERAR30,000,0007T
ZETZF 0 AR¥30,000,0007T)
HREE BT REMREE MW
RAEDNBWFAT R T EETRE
BEARABDRFINFIE Rk
BR—RE=ZHATRMPIER - 0
HEIOFINE HUKRTTREREN
ETHEHRERKRBRERERZ
BRI o

RITERNERFEFENFL435%F
75% (CEZZTFE 455%F7%) ©

RE&EE_ZE-_—F+-B=+—H
EFE AERE-—RMHEREQT
(TEAF-—HBEA)TIERLDMER
HoREzZWE AEEREEER
E5E ((HEEE) &/ RUEEY
BAEAZEA L AR 190,099,000t (M
B) BBEBLAEH-HBAAZSR
BoHEA-—HBEARNEBHESE
HAAER HEEA6E30EA -
HERERE AEEARAEZHE
mEL-HEABLOEEEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

The Group determined the transfers to the Buyer-lessor
were not sales under HKFRS 15, thus the Group continues
to recognise the underlying assets, and recognises financial
liabilities for the considerations. No gain or loss were
recognised from the sale and leaseback transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The obligations
arising from sale and leaseback transactions were secured
by finance lease receivables as mentioned in Note 19 and
guaranteed by the Company. The Considerations were placed
in a supervision account with restricted use as disclosed in Note
23(ii).

The borrowings from a finance lease company carried interest
of 7.53% per annum.

RE M B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE —F - —FF+ A=+ —HIFE

27. IR1T R Ethfa™k @)

BisE @ (B

(iii)

&)
BEEBMBREE 1598 REME
REBOEHF -—HEANZZTEH
oAb AEREEEITEREE
HUHBRITHMEB - REE_T
T—H+ZA=t—BLEENER
MR ZERDREERRESD (ZF
TERF I E  EROEXSELNE
75 UMY 551 9P it 2 B &5 70 & FE MR
EFEA WA R EHR HIE R 1
P EE23(i PR EE - 2 FHEWEFIRME
RRENEERREF -

M—RXUEEERABMERZENER
7.53% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. fg 7
Number of
shares Share capital
& B8 & s
‘000 HK$'000
T FATT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREECIATHNEBR
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R_ZE_ZTF—H—H-
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 _;ﬁi’gfﬁ‘f‘_ﬁ =+—8-
T —f+"A=+—H 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RKRZZE-_ZTHF—H—H-
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 :%:;ﬁﬂi—i—_ﬁ =+—H-
:%:—EJr_)%_Jr H 400,000 40,000
2021 2020
—EZ-F —FEFF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETT

Share capital shown in the consolidated %R & MR R KA~
statement of financial position 33,839 33,839
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. RESERVES
Group

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are

set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

page 108.

Company

Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

29. A
TEE
REBRBENAIEEZEEBHENS
108B e HEmEHRK

& AT
H A HEZEBIT

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

{7 iEE REtEiE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFTT AR®TRT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 A _E"EF—HF—H 84,435 (20,175) 64,260

Profit for the year FEREF - 10,818 10,818

2019 final dividend paid DRZE—NEFRBRE (10,884) - (10,884)
At 31 December 2020 and AR _EFE+"HA=+—HK

1 January 2021 R_E_—F—HF—H 73,551 (9,357) 64,194

Profit for the year FRiEH - 98 98

2020 final dividend paid PIRZEZSFEXRERE (8,333) - (8,333)

At 31 December 2021 RZZ2Z—F+-“HA=+—H 65,218 (9,259) 55,959

ZanEREEARAE FEHSE 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

30. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 30. B AT FEIR K

FINANCIAL POSITION

2021 2020
—E-—=F BT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR¥T T AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries INEENCIPA 120,337 120,009
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables  FE{J 718 K E fth FE U zk 18 35 127
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS I B~ B R IE 3,275 1,542
Bank balances and cash RITEGR RIS 555 894
3,865 2,563
Current liabilities mENaE
Other payables and accrued charges Hfthf& {7 I8 K FE ot & A 3,425 2,096
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHY B AT RIA 30,979 22,443
34,404 24,539
Net current liabilities REBEFEE (30,539) (21,976)
Net assets BEEFE 89,798 98,033
EQUITY HExm
Share capital il 28 33,839 33,839
Reserves B 29 55,959 64,194
Total equity 48 EA 89,798 98,033
On behalf of the Board EAREFY

Mr. Zhang Junshen

Mr. Zhang Yong

RIGRAE RB&E
Director Director
EZE EE
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krE M B IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE —F - —FF+ A=+ —HIFE

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BN KIE
2021 2020
—EZ-F —TITF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT AREFTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but  BEFJBRELREFFHRET

not provided in the consolidated TR W EE M B AR 8
financial statements in respect of BEATH
acquisition of subsidiaries - 27,040
32. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE 32. REAZEFHUE
YEAR
(a) On 4 December 2020, the Group entered into an (@) MIZEZIZFE+TAMH K&
equity transfer agreement with independent third EEBTE=FIIIUAHBA
parties to purchase 54% of equity share of Jiaenbei, a 153,240,000t lEE =R B (—
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC with RRHPEZINEREEAE)
consideration of RMB3,240,000. Jiaenbei is engaged S54%REZRIEEZEHZ B R
in provision of postpartum care service in the PRC. The BTEFREREMER FRY R
equity was transferred in January 2021. ERZE—F—B&EiEo

SxniZEREEERAD FEHE 2021 211
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AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

32. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE

32. RMEARAZEFBIWE @

YEAR (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(a)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of
Jiaenbei as at the date of acquisition and goodwill

arising from the acquisition were as follows:

(&
BERENRWBARZIRMEE
RBEUREBEBREENNESE
LI

RMB’000
AREFT
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,206
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEREE 100
Other receivables HAh e IE 1,755
Cash and bank balances IRITARRKRIRSE 1,110
Other payables H e TIE (358)
Contract liabilities EEVIENE (877)
Lease liabilities HEaRr (2,206)
Fair value of net assets acquired WSz 2EEATE 1,730
Less: non-controlling interests B IR R (852)
878
Consideration: HE .
- Cash paid —BfRE 2,240
— Other payables —HthE N RIE 1,000
3,240
Goodwill 5k 2.362
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEANFREME .
Cash consideration HEHBE 2,240
Less: Amount prepaid and previously B EMNLR B EEINERB AR TEN
included in "Prepayments for acquisition of I8 Z & %8
subsidiaries" 00)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B WERECRERIREEBY 1,110)
130

Goodwill of RMB2,362,000, which is not tax deductible,
comprises the acquired workforce and the significant
future prospect and the business value of Jiaenbei.
Since the acquisition date, Jiaenbei has contributed
RMB4,690,000 and RMB735,000 to the Group’s

revenue and profits.

Since the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2021,
which is also the beginning of the financial year, the pro
forma information is the same as the actual financial
information disclosed in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE __F_—F+ _H=Z+—HILFEE
32. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE 32. NERZEFEIE (8)
YEAR (continued)
(b) On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into an by WZEZE=EHF+—AZ+tH"

equity transfer agreement with independent third

parties to purchase the entire equity share of Dunnan,

a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC with
consideration of RMB31,000,000. Dunnan Group are
engaged in provision of postpartum care services in the

PRC. The equity was transferred in February 2021.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities

of Dunnan Group as at the date of acquisition and

goodwill arising from the acquisition were as follows:

AEBMBBIE=FTLUE
B ARE31,000,000cE B/
(—RKRPEARINERIEEA
B) IR IR o K
MEBTHREREMER FR®  Z
BEENR B - —F _F#Eo

FmERNWBERRZI#AE
EREBEURKEREENE
20T

RMB'000
ARETFIT
Trademark Gk 8,500
Property, plant and equipment MEFRE & 2,793
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15,390
Refundable rental deposits ARERERE 1,135
Other receivables HihpEWEIE 1,037
Cash and bank balances RITHBRRIRE 23,736
Other payables Hth e I8 (5,571)
Provision for taxation FEHRIE (67)
Contract liabilities =N SN=Kr (6,828)
Lease liabilities HEEaRE (15,390)
Deferred tax liabilities B IEE (& (2,125)
Fair value of net assets acquired WS Z FEEATFE 22,610
Less: non-controlling interests B IR R (2,681)
19,929
Consideration: HE
- Cash paid —BNRE 31,000
Goodwill ik 11,071
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEANFREME .
Cash consideration HeHE 31,000
Less: Amount prepaid and previously B FENAER SR ENNENE R B TEN
included in “Prepayments for acquisition of ~ FRIBJZ & %E
subsidiaries” (6,200)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B WBEBENE IR RIRSEEY (23,736)
1,064
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= A H
IS

At 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —

FrZA=1+—HILFE

32. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE
YEAR (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Goodwill of RMB11,071,000, which is not tax
deductible, comprises the acquired workforce and the
significant future prospect and the business value of
Dunnan Group.

Since the acquisition date, Dunnan Group has
contributed RMB34,771,000 and RMB1,322,000 to
the Group’s revenue and profits. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2021, the Group's revenue
and profits after income tax would have been
RMB122,697,000 and RMB5,961,000 respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

information is for illustrative purposes only and is not

This pro forma

necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2021, nor is it intended to be a projection of

future performance.
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32. RERZEHWE (B

(b)

(#)
mEAsARM11,071,0005 (R
AR BREMEKENEERH
MEENEARRATSMEEE
=K

BWEZBE AEEEALTE
BFIERZ W E RFED RS
AR #34,771,00070 B AR
1,322,0007C ° {5 & U B 85 2 70
TEI—F—F—H XxEBR
—E—H+"A=+—HIF
ENkREREMNF BB %
ANER#55122,697,000 AR #E
5,961,000 ZFBBEEES
REEE R W ARBUWRZUNE
RZIEZ—F—HF—H=M& &
ZEENBRAKREEXEREE
W R AR EIER R R ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Material non-controlling interests

(a)

Desheng Meimei, a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Company, has material non-controlling interests.
Summarised financial information in relation to non-
controlling interests of Desheng Meimei, before intra-

group eliminations, is presented below:

4 AH

AR B B RS AR AR MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

33. FEEeiEm
EAIFZER R A

(a)

BBHEE ARDERS 1 %ED
ZMBRE %E%ﬂ:?ﬂ’“ﬂ&ﬁ%
A o i & E A ER R I AT - £
ﬁﬂ%%%ﬂﬂ“ﬂﬂ%“ﬁ%ﬁzﬁﬂ%
EEMEBOT

For the
period from
For the 1 August
year ended 2020 to
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
ATE T
BHE NB—HZ=
—E-—F T EHF
+=-A=+—H +=-B=+—H
IEEFEE LEEARS
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T AR¥F T
Revenue & 6,078 2,113
Profit/(loss) for the year/period W&/ HRZ %R, (Ei8) 395 (55)
Total comprehensive income %EH&]\,VL | 395 (55)
Profit/(loss) allocated to non- EEI?F?HR&EM
controlling interests wmF (E518) 194 (27)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ~ BftIEIEREZZ RS
interests - -
Cash generated from operating RETHPMEBIRE
activities 2,372 50
Cash used in investing activities LEEHMAIRE (1,008) (27)
Cash used in financing activities MEFBPMARSE (1,103) -
Net cash inflows REFERA 261 23
At 31 December ®+ZR=+—H 2021 2020
Current assets MENEE 2,619 2,620
Non-current assets EREEE 1,922 1,929
Current liabilities MENEE (1,853) (2,257)
Non-current liabilities ERENEE (225) (225)
Net assets FEE 2,463 2,067
Accumulated non-controlling Rt IEEERER
interests 1,207 1,013
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IS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

(b)

FrZA=1+—HILFE

33. FEfetem &
BASF R R i

e

Jiaenbei, a 51% effectively owned subsidiary of the by ZBRB ARBEBBEEARS1%HE

Company, has material non-controlling interests.
Summarised financial information in relation to non-
controlling interests of Jiaenbei, before intra-group

mZWBRE  EEERIFER
oo NEBMRE T BE
BEFEREDARZMBEER

eliminations, is presented below: WENT
RMB’000
AREFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R-IE_—S+"-B=+—HLEE
Revenue & 4,690
Profit for the year FREF 735
Total comprehensive income EHEUA LR 735
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests ﬁ@ﬂi?ﬁ’“ﬂﬂ%%ﬁzlﬁnﬂ 362
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IEERER K E -
Cash generated from operating activities ST B2 S 1,952
Cash used in investing activities REEHFARSE (255)
Cash used in financing activities MEEHFTARSE (1,014)
Net cash inflows REFEMA 683

At 31 December 2021
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

R-ZE_—+”"H=+—H
nBEE

FRBEE

neaR

FEREBER

FEE

Rt FERED
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

(@

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

Dunnan Group has material non-controlling interests. (c)

Summarised financial information in relation to non-

controlling interests of Dunnan Group, before intra-

group eliminations, is presented below:

33. JEiEER =
EAIFIERRAER (E

HEEEBEEERFERED
RERANEHIHER > RAMER
FEREDARZMBERRE
LI

Guangzhou Guangzhou Guangzhou
Sheng Sheng Sheng
Ai Family Ya Family Xin Family
Services Co., Ltd. Services Co., Ltd. Services Co., Ltd.
ENTRERE BENTBRERE BEMHRERE
REERAR REBRAE REBRAR
Percentage of equity interests held ~ EAFEER B AR T
by non-controlling interests PRl EZ ARt 20% 15% 20%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T AREFT
For the period from 1 February AZEZ—F°F—HE
2021 to 31 December 2021 T -&+-RA=+—H
IRl
Revenue Wz 12,010 13,265 12,228
(Loss)/profit for the period RERZ (BB /a7 (815) 748 1,819
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE (815) 748 1,819
(Loss)/profit allocated to non- DEEFZERERZ (BB) /
controlling interests gl (163) 112 364
Dividends paid to non-controling ~ BYJEERERZKE
interests 163 172 298
Cash (used in)/generated from REES (FRR) /Fi5RE
operating activities (1,382) (904) 1,850
Cash used in investing activities RETHMAERS (190) (196) (233)
Cash used in financing activities RETHFRERS (4,183) (2,870) (3,603)
Net cash outflows B 3ERY (5,755) (3,970) (1,986)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-F+ZA=+—H
Current assets TEEE 5,936 6,930 5,020
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,710 5,993 2,504
Current liabilities TEaE (3,489) (4,375) (3,767)
Non-current liabilities ErEaE (40) (4,433) (157)
Net assets REE 5,117 4,115 3,600
Accumulated non-controlling Rt TR ER
interests 1,023 617 720
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 34. A AN TR B REEER

BALANCES

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to
those balances and transactions disclosed elsewhere, details
of other significant transactions between the Group and other
related parties during the year are disclosed as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors and senior management. Remuneration of the key
management personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends. The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year is as follows.

ARBEBAEABTEAENLZWER
Bl 7R 7 ENER S IRk B R 5 8 M I 5
RAMERNRE - FREMBHREZ
MERXZI  AEBREMBBAEA
ITRERNETZHEMEARZFHER
BT

EEEEBAEHE
FEETBEEAERESFRERE
BEE - T 2EEASZMNET) B HM
ZEEKERBENALZRERTS
BEAREE- FNETEEEEAEN
FEWT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥« 28h R HMEF

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRKEF] 5t 2 (3

Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management were within the following bands:

2021 2020
—E-—F “TITF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMET T
5,129 5,006
394 29
5,523 5,035

ENNEMGESREEABNMETE
UTE#EER :

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
B B
Emolument bands N EEE:
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 8 9
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %E 1,500,0007 7T -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 %2,000,0008 75 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %E2,500,000%E 75 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

n‘7|-\

B R R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEr_F

—Ff+ZA=F—HILFE

35. X EMBATRFE

Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place/Country of share capital/ issued capital  Principal activities
Date of incorporation/ incorporation/establishment registered held by  and place of
Name of company establishment and kind of legal entity capital the Company”  operations
AR, VNG
Iz BR BETRER P RITRE
AERE AR/ A B Rt EERER Bx,/EREE ZES IERBRESME
Honor Global Holdings Limited 28 October 2016 British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), limited US$50,000 100% Investment holding,
liability company (2020: 100%) Hong Kong
RREEHERERAT —~E+AZ+HN\R HBELHS EREEAT 50,000% 7T RERR BB
Infinite Success Enterprises Limited 2 July 2019 BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100% Investment holding,
(2020: 100%) Hong Kong
—hEtAZA HBRELHE BERELAT (S REER BF
Action Star Investments Limited 18 May 2020 BVI, limited liability company US$50,000 100% Investment holding,
(2020: 100%) Hong Kong
“E_2FRATN\H HERUHE BREEAH 50,000% 7% RERR B
HK Lixin 6 March 2013 Hong Kong, limited liability company ~ HK$50,000,000 100% Investment holding,
(2020: 100%) Hong Kong
EBLE —2-=f£=ARKH B BREEAT 50,000,000 7 RERR BB
Ziyuanyuan Finance Limited 8 October 2018 Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 100% Money lending, Hong
(2020: 100%) Kong
KB BERAT —N\E+ANR B BREEAR 10,0007 7% W& &
ZYY Finance Leasing 28 May 2014 PRC, limited liability company US$50,000,000 100% Provision of finance
(2020: 100%) leasing services, PRC
EnnHERE —MEEAZHNR  HE BEREEAR 50,000,000%7¢ RURMEEERS
HEl
Shenzhen Ruiheng Medical 16 August 2019 PRC, limited liability company US$2,898,800 100% Equipment trading, PRC
Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (2020: 100%)
(former known as Shenzhen Ruiheng
Equipment Trade Limited)
FmHEBEHREEERAR —hENB+7RH FE EREEAH 2,898,800% 7T REES TE
FEBRITHEREEZERAT)
Shenzhen Meijiaer Health Management 8 June 2020 PRC, limited liability company RMB50,000,000 100% Investment holding, PRC
Co., Ltd. (2020: (2020: 100%)
RMB1,000,000)
RTEERREEEERAT “22EF5ANR FE EREEAH AR REZR TE
50,000,0007C
(2020 A%
1,000,0007%)
Desheng Meimei 1 June 2020 PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000 51% Provision of postpartum
(2020: 51%) care services, PRC
BRHEx ZZE22EXA—H FE BREERT N RHEAFRE TE
1,000,0007%
Wuhan Boao Meimei Health 17 December 2020 PRC, limited liability company RMB5,000,000 60% Provision of postpartum
Management Co., Ltd. (2020: 60%) care services, PRC
HEBREXRRERERAT “2TEE+ZA+EH BB BARERRT N RHUAFRE hE
5,000,0007T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35. T EMf B TR @

=1

Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place/Country of share capital/ issued capital  Principal activities
Date of incorporation/ incorporation/establishment registered held by  and place of
Name of company establishment and kind of legal entity capital the Company"  operations
AR NG
Iz BR BREITRAR P RITRE
NGRS SEMARIL/ B B Rt EBRER B/ EMER ZESNL FEEBREEMY
Jiaenbei 22 October 2020 PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000 51% Provision of postpartum
(2020: N/A) care services, PRC
=RE ZZZEHAZHIH BB ARERRS AR RHEAFRE TE
1,000,0007T
Dunnan 27 December 2016 PRC, limited liability company RMB 10,000,000 100% Provision of postpartum
(2020: N/A) care services, PRC
] “2-R"E+ZAZ+tH B ERERART N RHUBFRHE HE
10,000,0007%
Guangzhou Sheng Ai Family Services 13 December 2016 PRC, limited liability company RMBS5,000,000 80%  Provision of postpartum
Co., Ltd. (2020: N/A) care services, PRC
ENTEREXERBERAT “E-RE+ZA+=H HE BREEAF N REAFRE 1E
5,000,0007T
Guangzhou Sheng Ya Family Services 1 August 2016 PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000 85% Provision of postpartum
Co., Ltd. (2020: N/A) care services, PRC
BT REEXERBERAF —Z2—-"E)\A—H FE EREEAH AR RHEAFRE TE
2,000,0007%
Guangzhou Sheng Xin Family Services 25 September 2017 PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000 80% Provision of postpartum
Co., Ltd. (2020: N/A) care services, PRC
BT REXERBERAT “2—tEANAZ+REHE B BERERART N RHUBFRHE $E
2,000,0007%

Except Honor Global Holdings Limited, Infinite Success
Enterprises Limited and Action Star Investments Limited, all
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

All subsidiaries adopted 31 December as their financial year
end date.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
subsidiaries which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH FLOWS

36. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
purchase of property, plant and equipment was partly settled

by prepayments for leasehold improvements paid in prior year

of RMB6,485,000.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

36. XFFREMEHRRZME

BE_Z-_ZF+A=1+—H 8B
BEYE BEKRLEEBBNHEER
B BEE L FELZNHNEECERA
AR #6,485,0007T ©

MEGTFHELEZAEZHR:

BE_ZE-_—S+”-HB=+—HLEHE
E

Bank and
other Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITIEM HEaE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT
At 1 January 2021 r-—®-f#-H-H ! 99,730 11,220
Changes from cash flows: WEREEDH .
New bank borrowings MIRITER 138,600 -
New borrowing from a finance lease i —ENHMEHEATEE>
company &R 90,099
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIBITEMR (137,224) -
Interest paid EfRFIE (6,374) -
Capital element of lease liabilities paid ~ BfIfAE&EE RS D - (11,444)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid EBEffAESE&F B 5 - (1,241)
Total changes from financing cash flows #E&ERESHEFH 0 85,101 (12,685)
Business combination =B eH - 17,596
Other changes: HnEg:
Lease commencement HERM® - 480
Interest expenses FMERXZ 6,374 1,241
Lease modification HEBE] - (4,711)
Total other changes MHEfthe®m 6,374 (2,990)
At 31 December 2021 RN_E_—F+"B=+—H 191,205 13,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —

36. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF

FrZA=1+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

36.

XFREMEHRRZMEE

(&)

EE_E_-T

F+"H=+—HLE

E

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEM HEaRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYFT AREFT
At 1 January 2020 f-FFHF—-H-H 56,180 14,888

Changes from cash flows: REREEH .
New bank borrowings ERITE 101,080 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRBITEMR (57,530) -
Interest paid EfRFIE (4,521) -
Capital element of lease liabilities paid B E&EEARELD - (3.378)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid EBEffAESE&F B9 - (897)
Total changes from financing cash flows #E&ERE S 000 39,029 (4,275)

Other changes: H g E:

Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-19—1HRATE S & - (726)
Lease commencement HEHM®R - 436
Interest expenses FMEEZ 4,521 897
Total other change MRHEftheE®m 0 4521 607
At 31 December 2020 R_Z_ZTF+_"_A=+—H 99,730 11,220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
instrument risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the directors meet
periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
the Group's exposure to a variety of risks which resulted
from its operating and investing activities. Generally,
the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its
risk management to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out as follows:

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
restricted bank deposits, bank balances, other
receivables, deposits, trade receivables, loan receivables
and finance lease receivables.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and finance lease receivables under
ECL model. Information about the Group's credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. A EIE

AEBRAXGZESHME N TR
BTAERR : mHER (BEINERR
RMRRER) - EERBRRABEZR
eoAEREZEERREESSED
RESTMH BN TEERRURE
8 = 1) B8 22 = 4R B! BY L B 1T B 7 R K
AEBEMBRFEAEZIINEETH

EX
A

FAERTEEERBREERRRE
SlefAM  EFEHRITEZH  UDHN
REEREREBEAERREAEER
ZRERREFEGHNIER R — R
Me  AFEEEXRRERTHAREE
RS BRERAMMBITEE RS-
HZEMBIAARZARRREZ
FRERZ BREST

(a) EREE
ERRRNXZHFHERES
F&EBMarEBEMMBRERX
WER AERZERRREE
WERBRGRITER RITHE
BFHEMEKRRIE - AIREHEE
BE BUWERKBREEERK
TR

FEERBEAHEREERR
EHERBRIBEETREN G-
ERAEEGERARERE &KX
5 B RO B R R E (B
8 WEA) BEWT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Restricted bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the majority of the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, and
the probability of default of the counterparty banks is
insignificant, and accordingly, no allowance for credit
losses is provided as the amount of ECL is immaterial.

Other receivables/deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of
the Company make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables and deposits
based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort at
reporting date. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. For the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables and deposits were
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk due to its large customer
base. The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of trade receivables which
subsequently measured at amortised cost and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout the reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on trade receivables as at the balance sheet date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations.

- Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of debtors.

- Significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the debtors, including changes
in the payment status of debtors in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the debtors.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE LT " —

FrZA=1+—HILFE

37. AR EIR &

(a)

SRR &)
EBZEWIE (B)
KEBMP A AES (H%B L
HRASEN) B2 RKREBERZ
BEAKREERSHRNEHARR
EEFERENMZEBE A
B ERAREERHERBREZEM
FEERBESEKMEREES
BRABEBANERAR A
BREANENORRETLER X
EETOAGENKREESZFE
HREEEE LEEMAMNUT
Ei=E =

- BEAREREHFABRTE
BRENEEEREMLEH
EB - MHBAEBERRNE
R TR E R MEE-

- BEBAKEXEBERNE
HARMEXREE -

- EBABRBEENTAH
EREE BEAERER
ABRARENEEMEES
FEmgt-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZF " —
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics and
the days past due of the trade receivables to measure
For the past due trade
receivables, the Group has assessed the expected credit

the expected credit loss.

loss by considering historical default rates, existing
market conditions and forward-looking information.
Based on the Group's assessment, expected credit loss
rate of trade receivables is close to zero. Therefore,
the loss allowance provision for these trade receivables
balances was not material.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to loan
receivables, credit limits and credit terms granted to
customers are approved by delegated officers and
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the credit risk of the Group is significantly reduced.
The directors of the Company estimate the estimated
loss rates of loan receivables based on industry types,
the historical past due information and lessees’
creditworthiness. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. As at 31
December 2021, the Group provided RMB7,000 (2020:
RMB69,000) impairment allowance for loan receivables,
based on 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to finance
lease receivables, credit limits and credit terms granted
to customers are approved by delegated officers and
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the credit risk of the Group is significantly
reduced. Except for the finance lease receivables are
credit-impaired, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining finance lease receivables are
grouped under a provision matrix based on industry
types, the historical past due information and lessees’
creditworthiness.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's concentration
of credit risk on finance lease receivables included
five major counterparties accounting for 3.3% (2020:
5.2%), of the aggregate outstanding balance at the
respective year end date.

The Group has closely monitored the recoverability
of finance lease receivables from all counterparties,
ensured adequate collateral is received from these
counterparties and taken effective measures to ensure
timely collection of outstanding balances.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of
geographical risk on revenue which is generated mostly
from customers located in the PRC during the reporting
period. The directors of the Company have closely
monitored the business performance of these customers
in the PRC and will consider diversifying its customer
base as appropriate.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. EEEIR &
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivables (continued)

For finance lease receivables, the Group has applied

the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss

allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for customers who are

credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on these

items by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal
credit rating. The table below detail the credit risk
exposure of the Group's finance lease receivables, which

are subject to ECL assessment:

37. A BIE =
() EREK (&
BERERERRE ()
BREREENRETS A%
BOERESMEREEDNE9
% 57552 TERAE AIE
KHBEARBE BROLBEEM
REZEEN SEEERRT
EEEEZZED > BEERE
GO UBmANBEEFROMe T
=HFARAEESHEER
REREERRIE BETER
ERBLTE 2 ERARK

Weighted Gross
average carrying Loss
lifetime ECL amount allowance
MEFEY
2 HATEH
B:EEEES IREAR{E BREE
(%) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(%) ARBFTT ARETT
As at 31 December 2021 BZEZ—
+-B=+—H
Low risk (the counterparty has 1&JEAR XZHFHZ
a low risk of default and BARBERIEE
does not have any past due wEHAEE8)
amounts) 2% 264,454 4,772
Fair risk (the counterparty —RRER RXZHFAH
frequently repays after due KENRIPEEEZH
date but usually settle in full)  fE3&) 22% 4,065 875
Loss (there is evidence indicating 4% (BEBEEREE
the asset is credit-impaired) HIREBRE) 81% 19,078 15,546
287,597 21,193
As at 31 December 2020 RIEZEH
+=ZB=+—H
Low risk & R Bz 1% 279,780 3,872
Fair risk — iR BBz 13% 17,356 2,170
Loss Ei=ES 93% 11,063 10,289
308,199 16,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivables (continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the PD, LGD
and the EAD. The assessment of the PD and LGD is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information related to the economic inputs and the
future macroeconomic conditions such as non-farm
payroll and purchasing managers’ index.

The Group calculated PD by applying linear regression
by inputting credit default swap, purchasing managers’
index and certain other index with adjustment factors
such as industry and region. The LGD were based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
and by referencing the external database on regional
recovery by creditors.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided
RMB5,647,000 (2020: RMB6,042,000) impairment
allowance based on the provision matrix. Impairment
allowance of RMB15,546,000 (2020: RMB10,289,000)
was made on credit-impaired finance lease receivables.

4 AH

AR B B RS AR AR MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. AR EIR &

(a)

ERRE (&)
HBEHEEWKHE (B)
BHPERBRANGEREOH
R BHE R FIE B R R O
BRE - BB R RENBRTD
RIS A BIAS T 8 A\ BUR K R 2K
REEERE PIMNIFRETLE
RFBEEANER ZAEEE
KRR 7 FE b #m m T o

FAEEDBEBAGRENK
R MR e T HMIEH
HTX BHFRRETHE)
RARMLBAREEORER B
MBBRDRBEELHRIVER
FHRENVXURBEEASZERE
BRI EBRBUIREBIS H o

R _E_—F+"A=+—8H"
AEEERIEIERGTIRARE
5,647,000t (ZZEZZF | AR
#6,042,0007T) BEREE 5B
BEZHEAEBIBTRIEERA
K #15,546,0007c (ZE-FF .
AR #10,289,0007T) = iF {8 &
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AH

Am a5 Rk AR MY 5E

For z‘he year ended 31 December 2021
B E —F+ZA=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

37. AREIR @)
(a) =AHEE #@)

Finance lease receivables (continued) HETAEENIE (&
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETREBZ HZEMME
that has been recognised for finance lease receivables HERWHIERD 2 2 ATERE
under the simplified approach. BiEXEE-
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
2HRHER 2HRBEREX
Bk (ARERAE) (ERAME) &t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEZ-§ ZCZf IZBI-§ TZ2%F - CZIEf
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January R—E—H 6,042 6,233 10,289 6,531 16,331 12,764
Changes due to finance lease receivables *—HA—BERZHERERNTEERZ
recognised as at 1 January: 29
- Transfer to credit-impaired -BREERAR (4,991) (603) 4,991 603 - -
- Impairment losses recognised —BE&MMEEST 1,160 1323 an 3,691 1,632 5,014
- Impairment losses reversal —AEEEED (127) (4,651) (206) (793) (333) (5,444)
Changes due to et addition of RERERUTIENLTE
finance lease receivables 3,563 3,740 - 257 3,563 3,997
At 31 December R+ZR=+-H 5,647 6,042 15,546 10,289 21193 16,331
The movements in the gross carrying amounts of finance HEHERUTBNIREMAESE
lease receivables were as follows: ER I
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
2HRBER RHRMEREX
Bk (LEERAE) (fERHME) ELh
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z8C-§ CTCZF BI-§ C“ZT%F “E-F CECEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETRE AREFTT ARETn ARETR AREFR ARETR
At 1 January Sz 297,136 365,095 11,063 6,746 308,199 371,841
Changes due to finance lease receivables  F8—F— ﬁ RHERERIZEEH
recognised as at 1 January: 29
- Transfer to credit-impaired ~BEEERAE (10,073) (8,014) 10,073 8,014 - -
- Settlement -1 (211,926) (245,834) (2,058) (3,957) (213,984) (249,791)
Changes due to net addition of HERERNRIENEE
finance lease receivables 193,382 185,889 - 260 193,382 186,149
At 31 December R+ZB=1+-H 268,519 297,136 19,078 11,063 287,597 308,199
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial guarantees issued

To determine ECLs for financial guarantee issued, the
Group considers changes in the risk of default of the
specified debtor since the initial recognition of issuance
of the guarantee. The amount of financial guarantees
issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 39.

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk related
primarily to certain restricted bank deposits, bank
balances, refundable rental deposits and lease liability
that are denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. AR EIE &
(@) fEAEE (&)
B 1R
B EMEEEEENERER
B AEEEEEEREHY
V)RR USRS B A MIB 4
B o A B T8 > M (R
ﬁ@%%ﬁw$ﬁﬁ%o

(b) HEREM
REBZINERE EZELALE T
RETHEZEERGIRITE
MRIRITHERR  ARIBHER
EREEEGEEM AEBEAH
WA AINEE R o AT BB

policy. However, management monitors foreign BERINERE RN E R
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant B%%)%ﬁ/qﬂij(%ﬂ%ﬂﬁm °
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies REIEER > AEBLUIIMBEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end 2EREEREEREBETNT
of the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BHE af
2021 2020 2021 2020
“§_-% "T_Tf E”-§ _ITCEf
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFR AREETR AEETR ARETR
HK$ BT 1,949 2,235 355 1,044
us$ e 3 4 - -

The Group's exposures to foreign currencies on financial
assets and liabilities are mainly concentrated in the
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates, for which the
directors of the Company considered the effect is
immaterial.

FEEASNEREEREED
SRS IR BRI S E R
R AADEERALL ST
REA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings. The Group takes on exposure
to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing market
interest rates affecting the cash flow risks.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities, fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate
finance lease receivables and deposits from finance lease
customers. The Group does not have a fair value interest
rate risk hedging policy.

Management monitors the related interest exposure
closely to ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken is monitored
closely.

The Group’'s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and liabilities are mainly concentrated in the
fluctuation of People’s Bank of China rate arising from
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings for which the directors of the
Company considered the effect is immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors, and the entity has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the directors’ short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+_HF=+—HIEE

Liquidity risk (continued)

37. B\ EI18 &
d) RBHELEKE (&
TR N EREPHARERIEST

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group's

non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based

on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

interest payment computed using contractual rates or,

if floating, based on current rates at the reporting date)

and the earliest date the Group may be required to pay.

TEMEBAENRGRETOEEA -
ZEREEREERERAEERN
AMRBEERERTEETRE
REENRFEARRERR - KTE
BEANERAZRERERAER
MEHENREXNH B F
#) BERWEHEFXAE -

Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or 1to Over
amount  cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
BEHE
BRRS 15RAS
REE nE BEX 1528 2ENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETT  ARBTR ARETR AREfrT ARETR
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--F
+ZR=+-H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEEmaR
Other payables EENTIE 5,948 5,948 5,948 - -
Deposits from finance lease customers HEHEXF#E 147 147 147 - -
Lease liabilities HEGE 13,14 14,355 6,742 2,654 4,959
Bank and other borrowings RITREMET 191,205 209,463 126,346 40,761 42,356
210,441 229,913 139,183 43,415 47,315
Financial guarantees issued MBERRN - 4,600 4,600 - -

As at 31 December 2020 RIZZZE
+ZA=+-H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FitsreRk
Other payables HitE[FE 6,551 6,551 6,551 - -
Deposits from finance lease customers BEMEEPHE 5,679 6,109 5,821 288 -
Lease liabilities fHEaR 11,220 12,615 4,145 3,064 5,406
Bank borrowings RITEX 99,730 101,941 101,941 - -
123,180 127,216 118,458 3,352 5,406
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
issued are the maximum amounts the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses. Details of the financial guarantee issued
are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined based on discounted cash flow analysis,
with the most significant inputs being the discount rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate to their fair
values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable
inputs used in determining the fair value measurement
of Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments, as well as
the relationship between key observable inputs and fair
value are set out below.

Financial assets EHEE

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. AR EIE &

() AT (@)
BATEHEZEMIA
TREATERRDHiRATE
HEYEMTIA:

E—BREREERBRNE
B2 ®E CGRF

) ;

F_BR REENERERE
(BB &) stfE s (BD
RERFE) JEER
ZHABE (FEE
F—EBRAMEIZR
B &k

FZBR EHMEENBREMIL
JELLRT R = 35 BUE
BEZEABE (B
EBERZBARRE) -

HERTMNEREZHER 2B A
BERANBEEE _BEXRNE=/2
REMIBEZAFEBESE XN
KRR ERZ @A BIREAQAT
BEZHEHNBFRED T

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—ER BIER F=BR 1z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT AREBTRT AREBTRT ARETR

Financial assets measured at FVTPL: BRATBEFABZZSREE

- Investments in bond investment  —RBEREHEREET
trusts

There were no transfers between levels during the year.

- - 35,322 35,322

RER BEERZELEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

Fair values (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
For investments in bond investment trusts which are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, based on the relevant agreements, the Group
can require the relevant counterparty to redeem
the units at net asset value by giving a written
redemption notice. The fair values of these investments
in bond investment trusts, totaling approximately
RMB35,322,000, are provided by the relevant
counterparties. The Group has determined that the
reported net asset values represent fair value of these
investments in bond investment trusts.

The higher the net assets value of the underlying
investments, the higher the fair value of the financial
assets at FVTPL will be.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. #HEERIEI D ERMBEER
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY THEEHRE
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value TRIITEMEEMEENREENR
of financial assets and liabilities: NFEE
2021 2020
—E--f It k- 2
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value

REE A¥fE REE A
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR AREBTR ARBTR

Financial assets EREE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: MM At ENESRHEE |
— Finance lease receivables -REREREKRTE 59,501 59,501 84,380 84,380
- Loan receivables —-EWER 169 169 864 864
- Deposits % 6,121 6,121 1,017 1,017

Current assets RBEE

Financial assets measured at FVTPL: BAFBEFABRZEHEE
- Investments in bond investment trusts ~ —ZBREERERET 35,322 35,322 - -

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: MBS At ENEREE |
- Finance lease receivables —RMEHREERZIE 206,903 206,903 207,488 207,488
- Loan receivables —-BBER 823 823 6,935 6,935
— Trade receivables —-BFEWE 501 501 - -
- Other receivables and deposits —-HtERHRBERES 8,296 8,296 5,479 5,479
— Restricted bank deposits —BRHEIRTER 106,023 106,023 - -
- Bank balances and cash —RITEGFRRE 33,492 33,492 84,814 84,814

457,151 457,151 390,977 390,977

Financial liabilities EHaRE

Current liabilities mEaR

Financial liabilities measured at amortised LU S At ENSHAE
cost;
- Other payables —HMERNTIE 5,948 5,948 6,551 6,551
~ Lease liabilities —THEER 6,201 6,201 3,491 3,491
- Deposits from finance lease customers  —RIEAERF RS 147 147 5,422 5,422
- Bank and other borrowings —SRITREMBER 117,496 117,496 99,730 99,730

Non-current liabilities ElFrER=Ri

Financial liabilities measured at amortised LU SSm At ENSREE:
cost;
- Lease liabilities -HEERE 6,940 6,940 7,729 7,729
- Deposits from finance lease customers  —BIEHERF RS - - 257 257
- Bank and other borrowings —RITREMER 73,709 73,709 - -

210,441 210,441 123,180 123,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_F=+—HIEE

39.

40.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

The Group provided guarantees to some of its customers’
lenders in relation to these customers’ bank loans amounting
to approximately RMB4,600,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil). The financial guarantees were guaranteed by
restricted bank deposits of RMB5,000,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil) (Note 23). The directors of the Company
consider that the fair value of the above guarantees is
insignificant on initial recognition and at the report dates,
no expected credit loss for financial guarantees issued was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners of the Company through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings as set out in Note 27 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the share capital and borrowings. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and issue of new borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. EFFECT OF COVID-19

The World Health Organisation declared coronavirus and
Covid-19 a global health emergency on 30 January 2020.
The outbreak of Covid-19 and the subsequent quarantine
measures as well as the travel restrictions imposed by many
countries have had negative impacts to the global economy,
business environment and directly and indirectly affect the
operations of the Group. As such, the financial positions and
performance of the Group were affected in different aspects,
including reduction in revenue due to decrease in customers’
demand caused by temporary suspension of operation of
the customers in certain areas in the PRC, increase in ECL
provision due to worsening creditworthiness of certain
customers and rent concessions from a lessor.

The directors of the Company are continuing to assess
the implications of Covid-19 pandemic to the business in
which the Group operates. Depending on the duration of
the Covid-19 pandemic and continued negative impact
on economic activity, the Group might experience further
negative results, and liquidity restraints and incur additional
impairments on its assets in 2022. However, the exact impact
in the remainder of 2022 and thereafter cannot be predicted.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE - —F+ _A=+—HILFE

41. COVID-192Z B2 &
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MEERHEE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021, 2020, 2019,
2018 and 2017, extracted from the audited financial statements in
the annual reports and the Prospectus of the Company dated 25
June 2018, is as follows:

FEEHE S

— =

—F B CEFF
—hF - ZE-—N\EFERZIZ—tHF+ITAH
—t+—HLEFEEZEHEX£BEUKREER
EBERE BREFRAESRBHEBEACZE

—N\ERBI+HRAZERERRNZEE

R FBE|®RR) T
RESULTS: £l
Year ended 31 December
BE+_B=1+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —Z-ZE “E-hE ZT-N\E ZT—tH&
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETT ARETT ARBTT AREBTE
Revenue W& 119,442 58,512 68,125 60,409 52,060
Profit before taxation BRI A A 6,166 15,155 26,453 22,958 15,942
Income tax credit/(expenses)  FRiSfEt A/ (Bs2) 277 (2,270) (9,580) (6,013) (6,377)
Profit for the year FRiEH 6,443 12,885 16,873 16,945 9,565

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: BERAR:

As at 31 December
w+ZB=+—8H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B EZEZE “E-NE Z-N\E T—tfHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ABETRT ARETT ARETT ABRETR
Total assets BEBE 532,749 439,611 426,572 403,389 351,908
Total liabilities BE10% (228,427) (136,299) (126,301) (119,991) (141,557)
Total equity A 304,322 303,312 300,271 283,398 210,351
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